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Cansn sLaements in the Annual Repon constiule forwand-lokng S1aternants within the rmeaning of the Friae Secunties Lgston Aeform A of 1985,
inchuding staterments regarding ous business, product and marketing sirategies, new sanics oflarings, the relurn on oul investiment n, and perforrmance of,
Chaner Communications, e, ["Charter~), fulure acquisiton and mvestment sclivites, the recoveabdity of cur goodwill and cther long-ved assets, our projected
aources and uses of cash, and the anticipated impact of censin contngant lisbilties retsted to lagal and tax procesdings and cthes matters arming n the cedinany
course of businesa. In particular staterments in our “Letter fo Shareholden ™ and under “Managemant's Dracussion and Anakyss of Fnancial Condition and
Faguits of Cparations” and “Cuantitative and Qualitative Deacicsures Aoyt Market Risk” contain forsand-iooking statermants. Whare, in any forsand-looking
statarTEnt, W Bpess an expectatson of Deled s 1o futuee results or events, such sxpectation of belel & epressed in geod taith and believed 1o have a
peasanable Db, bal Thede Can De No BEBULANCE That The pectaton of Debal will resull of be schieved of sccormplshed. The folkwng nclude soma but not

all ol the factars that eould cause sctual results o everts 1o difler rraterally frarm those anticpated

= Charter's sty 1o sustain and grow revenus and cash fow from cparations

bry olfeding videds, INEEREL, vocs, Svenmng and olher seraces 1o
resaderiial and comersncial customers, to sdequately meet the custormer
EpaTBNCE G8MAnds in s rarkets and 10 rraintain and grow TS custormer
base, particularly in the face of inc agpresans  the
nead for nnovation and 1he related capstal expenditures,

= 1he wmpaa of competiion frm othes marke parlicpants, induding but
1101 WIS 10 INCUITRENT L8NNGS CoMmpanes, drect bioadcsst sateling
aparalon, witsless and pr digal subscribes
ling {"DISL "] provaders, video provaded ower The Inbernel and peovaders
of advartising cvar the internat, ganaral busingss. condnions, SConomc
uncariaingy of downiurn, high uremployrment kesels and the leved of actvity
o this housing sectorn,

# Chafler's sbilty 1o oblan prografmiming 81 isasonabie phoes of 1o fse
prices 1o offsa, in whaols o in par, the affects of highes prograrmming
costs Including retrarsmission consants),

* iha dovelopmani lﬂdlphymmolnuwudmw1nlwm¢wu

» failure to peotect the sscurfty of parssnal rformation about the
custormamn of cur operaling subsidary and equity affilate, submecing
Ut b costly governmant snforcarmant actions of prvate itigation and
repuiational darmage;

= changes i, or fadure of inabiklty to comply with, govemrment ragulsens,
nchiding, without lirmtation, regulatxns of 1he Fededal Communications.
Commeysion, and advems catcomes from regulstory procsedings,

w1 etfects of Qovernanamal reguisteon o Gl Disiness of Botant sl
bussiness corrienaticn ITanSact ks,

= afry evants 1hat distupt Chamar's netwarks, infctrration systarrs. of
properes and impair is operating aciiviiies and negat eky impact
5 raputation,

* 1t abiity of aupplirs and vendols 10 88ler products, Bpupent.
saftware and services,

* 1t outcome of any pending of thiesatensd iigation,

* wvslabiiity of qualified parsonnal.

= changes  The nate of Key SIategic ralsnonshps wih parners, vendon
and pant venburers,

= tha gvalabdity and sccess, in general, of finds 1o meet debt cbigations
prear o or whan they becoms due and 1o fund cpemtions and necessary
capital apandnires, anhar through (i) cash on hand, (i free cash flow, of
{in} @coess 1o 1he capial of credt farksts,

» the abibiy of Charter and cur ey wiih all n
U PRDECTiE BT INSLIUMMENLS, 8 VIolasan of which, # ot cured
o a tirnely ranner, eould tigger a defaull of ather cbligations under
cions-dalau provisions,

# cuat abubty 1o Successtully MOnatize Camain of our assets, and

* o akulty to successiully deploy the use of proceads from the nghts
offanng, BCiidng the Faladiny of INVESIFMBNt SEporiundiss Ko he extent
such funds are not deploped 1o acquire shares of New Charter stock.

RISKS RELATED TO THE TIME WARNER CABLE TRANSACTION AND
‘THE BRIGHT HOUSE TRANSACTION

 the abubty of Charter 1o commplete the Trme Warner Cable Trarsaction ard
Bright House Transaction togathar with the Tire Wamaer Cable Transaction,
the " Transactons ") and cur ability 1o completa the acqusition of New
Chadas stock i eonnecton tharewnh;

* New CRarmans iy 10 SN 1he ynerges and vahis Craanon
contemplated by 1he Transactions,

* Now Chartar’s ability 1o promptly, afficently and affectsaly intagrate
acquired Cpemtions Nt its cwn operations;

* managing a signficantly largar campany Than bef are the corrpletion of
the Transactions,

* diversion of management fame on msues related 10 the Trarsactons,

» charges in Charters, Tirre Wames Cable's of Brght House's businesses,
Al cash POOUISITEns, CADRA (SGUINements, reaulls of oparsons,
revanues, fnancal condition andiior cash flows,

* disruption in the sating business relationships of Charter, Tirre Warnar
Cabda and Bright House as a mesult of the Transactons,

* the ncrease o indabledress as a result of the Transactions, which wall
ARG B il iy Crames of 3

# charges in trarsaction costs, the amcunt of fees paid to financial advaon,
poantial tarmination feers and tha potental paymants to Tima Warnar
Cabia's and Brght Housa's sxecutve officars in conmaction with
the Tranasctions.

# oparating costs and business disruption that rray be greater than
axpacted, and

* the abilty to retain and hire ey personned and maintain relationships.
with providens of ofhar busingss parinens panding corplation of
the Transactions

The terrrs “Meww Charter” ~Tirme Wamer Cable Trarsaction™ and “Bright House Transsction” are defined m cur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
Dacernbar 31, 2015 on file with the SEC. Thesa forward-locking statements and such ks, uncertsintes and other factom speak only a3 of the date of tha
Annual Repon, and we expressly dmelaim any obliganon of undemaking to deserranate ary updates of revisons 1o any forwand-leoking swtaerrsnt contaimesd
hestenn, to reflect any changs m our expectalions with regard 1heieto, of any other change in events, condions of artumstances on which ary such statermant
mbasad Whan corsidenng such forward-lockang statarments, you should keep n mind any rek factors dentified and other cautionary statsmants contained n
this Annual Regort Such rsk faciors and siaermenis describe circummsiances which could cavse acteal results 1o differ materially fram those contaired in any
farward-koking statanant

Thes Annual Repcrt inchudes information concerning public companies in which wea have non-controlling mierests that file reports and other infoermation with the
SEC in aceordance with the Securmies Exchange Act of 1934, a3 arended. nfarmancn contared in thes Annual Repen concarming thoss cormpaness has been
deteved {rorm the reports and other informancn filed by therm with the SEC. I you would ke funther infarmancn about thess companies, the reports and other
mbarrration they fis with the SEC can be scossasd on the Inleinet website rasitaned by the SEC at wwwssc gov Thoss reports and athes mfarmaton are not
incomaorstad by reference i thes Annual Repon



LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Events of the past year speak 1o the dynamism inherent
m the cable industry. The transactions described n

aur 2015 letter were completely restructured, much

to the banefit of Liberty Broadband as well as Libarty
Interactive Corparation, which will soon be one of our
newest investors. That said, for all the changes to wha

s buying whaom, in what structure and at what price, the
general trend towards industry consabidation continues.
And how could it not? The economics of consolidation
are compelling for acquirer and acquiree alike. As we've
advocated for in the past, the scale these ransactions
craate is integral to developing and deploying rew
generabons of digital technalogy, to the ulbmate benefit
of consumers. This i3 an area where the US simply
cannat afford to fall behind, Whether you believe it is
keeping Amenca great or making it graat agan, massive
nvestment by leading cable companies will be a pivotal
factor in our country’s digital future. For this and many
othar reasons, we at Liberty Broadband remain extremely
excited about our investment in Charter Communications,

Before we dive into the pending deals, let us briefly touch
on fundamentals. In many ways, 2015 was a statemeant
year for the cable industry and notably for Charter. We saw
Charter add video subscribers, thereby defying prevailing
ndustry logic that pay TV is a proverbial melting ice cube,
We were proud of Charter for closing out 2015 as the first
full year in over a decade in which video customers grew.
Continued investment in the quality of the video offering
s proving suceessful, and bundhng this product alongside
mdustry-leading broadband speeds offers consumers a
highly compelling proposition

WHAT HAPPENED TO THE CHARTER—

COMCAST DEALS?

About a month after we published our 2014 letter,
Comecast chose to walk away from its proposed
acqusition of Time Warner Cable ("TWC"). Charter [with
the suppart of Liberty Broadband's strategic mvestment
and board parbcipation) was able to quickly negotate a
transaction through which it would buy the entirety of
TWC. Combinad with the pending acquisition of Bright
House Netwoarks, these transactions totaled $89 billion in
ncremental enterprise value at the time of announcement
During the negotiations with TWC, a new player amarged
i the US cable space, Altice. Wa know Altice’s leadarship
tearn well and have great respect for Patrick and Dexter
as both deal makers and operators, and will be observant
of their plannad acquisition of Cablevision_ The US cable
industry should benefit from their emergence as an
additional scale player

TERMS OF THE MEW TWC & BRIGHT HOUSE DEALS
Whila the details are too woluminous to fully capture here,
the salient highlights include:

* TWC shareholdars raceiving $195.71 (value as of

announcement date) per share in a mox of cash and stock

($100-115 per share in cash);

* fBright House's private owners to receive $10.4 hillion in a
mix of cash, and commaon and preferred eguity Ivalue as of
announcemeant date);

*+ Charter will have a reasonable pro forma leverage profile of
4 Bx or lower and should delever rapidly through growth;

# Liberty Broadband will invest 35 billion in newly issued
Charter equity (up to $4.4 billion of which will be funded by
newly issued Liberty Broadband Series C shares to Liberty
Interactive wia its Ventures Group and a small group of third
party inwestors),

* Liberty Broadband will own approximately 19% of Charter
upon closing and will receive a voling proxy from Advanca/
Newhousa (current parent of Bright Housa) 1o increase our
vota ta 25.01%; and

& |iberty Broadband will maintain strong governanca nights
and appoint 3 of 13 directors post-clasa

DEAL RATIOMNALE

Liberty Breadband's commitment 1o inwest an incremental

$5 bullion in connection with tha TWC and Bright House
transactions speaks to our confidence in the future of Charter
and cable. Rarely s one presented with such an opperunity:
deploy large sums of capital, in one’s industry of expertisa,
with a hughly efficient capital structure, the advantage of
meaningful governance nghts and a management team
considered best-in-class. Tom Rutledge, Chartar's highly
talentad CEQ, has been able to create value in the exsting
footpnint through a clean strategy of investing i great
products, providing fair and straight-forward consumer pricing
and supparting it with supenor customer senice. We are
axtremaly confident that this strategy will scale well ta the
mwch larger pro forma footprint of Charter, TWIC and Bright
House. Operating synergies, scale efiiciencies in innovation,
attractive finandcal leverage and accelerated use of our net
operating losses further enhance the return profile. We
Jumped on the opportunity to invest in this transaction as a
follow up to our indtial investmeant in Charter in May 2013
LOOKING AHEAD

For the time being, all eyes remain on the regulatory approval
process. We continue 1o believe that a second quarter close
i the most likely imeling. Charter's reputation of pro-
consumer behavior and the benefits awaiting TWC's millions
of subscnbers should tip the scales in our favor, but for now
Wit Wit

We lock forward to seeing many of you at this year's annual
investor meeting, which will take place on November 10th at
the Times Center at 242 West 413t Street in New York City.

We appreciate your ongoing support,

Very truly yours,
Gartt— J&L C Mt
Graegory B. Maffei John C. Malone

President & Chief Executive Officer  Chairman of the Board



STOCK PERFORMANCE

The fellowing graph compares the percentage change in its span-off from Liberty Media Corparation) through
the cumulative total shareholder return on an investment December 31, 2015, in comparison to the S&F 500

in Liberty Broadband Series & and Series C commen Index and S&P Media Index. Liberty Broadband

stock from November 5, 2014 {the day Liberty performance includes the impact of the rights offering
Broadband began trading “regularway* following completed in January 2015,

LIBERTY BROADBAND COMMON STOCK V5. S&P 500 & MEDIA INDICES
W54 TO /NG

NOV-14  DEC-14  JAN-1S  FEB-1S  MARS  APRAS  MAY-1S  JUN-1S  JUL1S AUGS  SEP1S OCT-15 NOV-1S  DEC1S

LIBERTY BROADBAMD SERIES A —— LIBERTY BROADBAND SERIES C s SAP MEDIA INDEX === S&P 500 INDEX
11/5/2014 12/31/2014  12/31/2015
Liberty Broadband Series 4 [ £100.00 $102.03 | £105.89
Liberty Broadband Series C ] £100.00 si0148 | $106.28
S&P 500 Index $100.00 $101.75 $101.01
v | —ow|  swmnl ez




Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters of Equity Securities.
Muarket Information

Each series of our common siock has been outstanding since November 2014, Our Series A and Series C common stock
trade on the Nasdag Global Select Market under the symbols “LBRDA™ and “LBRDK,” respectively. Our Series B common
siock is eligible for guotation on the OTC Markets under the symbol LBRDEB, bui it is nof actively traded. The following table
sets forth the quarterly range of high and low sales prices of shares of each senes of our common stock for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 for the peniods they were outstanding, With respect to our Series B common stock, this information
represents infer-dealer prices withowt dealer mark-ups, mark-downs or commissions, and may not be indicative of the value of
the common stock or the existence of an active market.

Liberty Broadhand Carporation

Serbes A Series B Serfes ©
(LBRDA)Y {LERDE) (LERDK)
—High =~ Low = _High = Low = __High _ Low
2014
Fourth quarier (after November 4, 2014 . s 55.35 44,63 50,00 48.00 54.74 42,12
2015
Firstquarer.......cccuvvvinaaironans b 5813 44.08 60.01 43.09 58.07 44,06
Second quarter. . . b 36.60 49 80 60.01 5167 5680 45 90
Third quarter . . ... b 5728 49.50 5630 50,23 5603 48.28
Fourthquarer .............coc0vveuns ] 36,10 48,80 35.00 51.53 5970 48,94
Holders

As of Tanuary 31, 2006, there were 949, 70 and 1,207 holders of our Series A, Series B and Series C common stock,
respectively, The foregoing numbers of record holders do not include the number of stockholders whose shares are held
nominally by banks, brokerage houses or other institutions, but nclude each such institution as one shareholder,

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and we have no present intention of so doing. Payment of cash
dividends, if any, in the future will be determined by our board of directors in light of our earmngs, financial condiion and other
relevant considerations.

Secnrities Anthorized for Issnance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy statement for our 2016 Annual Meeting
of stockholders,

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuwer

There were no repurchases of Series A, B or C Liberty Broadband common stock during the penod. Durning the three months
ended December 31, 2015, 1,254 shares of Series A Liberty Broadband common stock and 2,256 shares of Senes C Liberty
Broadband common stock were surrendered by certain of our officers and employees o pay withholding taxes and other
deductions in connection with the vesting of their resiricted stock.
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Selected

Financial Data,

The following tables present selected historical information relating to our financial condition and resulis of operations

for the past five vears. The following data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements.

Decembier 31,

s P 2013 2012 00 (3
Sumnrary Balance Sheet Data: ... .. ... .. amounts in thomsands
Cash and cash equivalents ... _....._..... S 635079 44,809 5,251 10,031 30,890
Invesiments in available for sale securities, . $ 439 560 360,762 326,700 232 p48 151,581
Investment in affilistes, accounted
for using the equity method (2)........... 8§ 2371099 24498 804 2402024 —- —
Intangible assets not subject o amortization
L TR 5 6,497 27,166 20,669 20,669 20,669
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net
L § 11,887 12,915 429 1,562 3,645
Net deferred income tax assels. . ... ....... $ 53,368 30522 — — —
Totalassets ............... e oo 80 3,565,741 3,003,471 2,891,781 306,786 247,084
Long-term debi 5 399,703 371,539 - — —_
Wet deferred income tax labilines. ... s — — 6,740 34 lab 13,722
Total equity (deficit). ... ....oooenan, 3,148,219 1494, 768 2,779,194 196,459 161,128
Vears Emlod Decembar 31,
s 204 2013 22 2011 i3
Sumrmary Statement of Operations Data: amounts in thowsands, exeepl per share amaants
L b 91,182 69,045 77,363 53,098 1,136,934
Operating income (10s8) . . .............. b 58955 (42,974) (88) 7879 640,359
Share of eamings (losses) of affiliate (2) . . § (120962) (127573 (76,090)
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial
ERSUUMETES - - oo oo g 2,619 51,189 97,860 57,582 (4,150

Cunin (loss) on dilution of investment m affiliie .. § {;:IQRJ (B7,158) {92.933) — —
Net eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty

Broadband shareholders . ... .ovoverenneiinnn.. $ (0,187 {134,605 (41,728} 44,196 607,374

Basic earnings (loss) per common share (4)... ... b {0.49) {1.52) {04T) 0.50 688

Diluted earings (loss) per common share (4) ... 8 {0.49) {1.52) {0.47) 050 688

(1) As discussed in note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, TruePosition acquired 10026 of the
ouistanding common shares of Skyhook, & Delaware corporation, on February 14, 2014 for approximately $57.5 million
in cash.

2) As discussed in note 6 1o the accompanying consolidated financial statements, in May 2013, Libenty acquired
approximately 26.9 million shares of common stock and approximately 1.1 million warrants in Charter for
approximately 2.6 billion, which represented an approximate 27% beneficial ownership in Charter at the time of
purchase,

3) In 2011 TruePosition recogmized $1,014 million of previously deferred revenue and $4035 million of deferred costs
associated with two separate contracts.

{4) We issued 85,761,332 common shares, which is the aggregate number of shares of Series A, Series B and Series C

commen stock outstanding upon the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off on November 4, 2014, Additionally, Liberty
Broadband disinbuted subscription rights, which were priced at a discount to the market value, to all holders of Liberty
Broadband common stock as of the rights record date. Because of the discount, the rights offering is considered a stock
dividend which requires retroactive treatment for prior periods for the weighted avernge shares oulstanding based on a
factor determined by the fair value per share immediately prior to the rights exercise and the theoretical fair value after



the rights exercise. The number of shares issued upon completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, adjusted for the rights
factor, was wsed to determine both basie and diluted eamings (loss) per share (“EPS™) for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 and for the period from January 1, 2014 through the date of the Broadband Spm-Off, as no Company
equity awards were outstandmmg prior o the Broadband Spin-O4f. Basic EFS subsequent to the Broadband Spm-Off was
computed using the weighted average mumber of shares outstanding (“WASO™), adjusted for the rights factor, from the
date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off through January 9, 2015, the dale on which the rights offering was
fully subscribed. Diluted EPS subsequent to the Broadband Spin-OfF was computed using the WASO from the date of
the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off through January 9, 2015, adjusted for the rights factor and potentially dilutive
equity awards outstanding duning the same period. Subsequent to January 9, 2015, basic EPS was computed using the
WASD during the period, and diluted EPS was computed using the WASO adjusted for potentially dilutive equity awards
ouistanding during the period.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis provides information conceming our results of operations and financial condition.
This discussion should be read i conjunction with our accompanying consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto.

Overvigw

During May 2014, the board of directors of Liberty Media Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Liberty™) authorized
management (o pursue a plan to spin-off to iis stockholders common stock of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Liberty Broadband
Corporation (“Liberty Broadband™), and 1o distribute subseription rights 1o acquire shares of Liberty Broadband s commaon stock
{the “Broadband Spin-O4fF). At 5:00 pm., New York City time, on November 4, 2004, the Broadband Spin-Off was completed
and shares of Liberty Broadband common stock were distributed to the shareholders of Liberty as of a record date of 5:00 p.m.,
New York City time, on October 29, 2014, Liberty Broadband is comprised of, among other things, (i) Libeny's former interest
in Charter Communications, Ine. (“Charter”), (11) Liberty's former whollv-owned subsidiary TruePosition, Inc. (“TroePosition™),
{iii} Liberty's former minority equity investment in Time Warner Cable, Inc. (*Time Warner Cable™ or “TWC”), (iv) centain
deferred tax liabilities, as well as liabilities related to the Time Warmer Cable written call opfions and (v) imtial indebiedness,
pursuant to margin loans entered into prior 1o the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off. The Broadband Spin-Off was accounted
for at historical cost due fo the pro rata nature of the distribution to holders of Liberty common stock.

In the Broadband Spin-Off, record holders of Liberty Series A, Senies B and Senes C common stock received one-fourth
of a share of the corresponding series of Liberty Broadband commaen stock for each share of Liberty common stock held by them
as of 5:00 pum., New York City fime on October 29, 2014 (the record date) for the Broadband Spin-CHE, with cash paid in liew of
fractional shares. In addition, following the completion of the Broadband Spin-OfF, on December 10, 2014, stockholders received
a subseription right 10 acquire one share of Series C Liberty Broadband common stock for every five shares of Liberty Broadband
common stock they held as of 5:00 pm., New York City time, on December 4, 2014 (the rights record date) at a per share
subscription price of $40.36, which was a 20% discount to the 20-trading day volume weighted average trading price of the Series
C Liberty Broadband common stock following the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off. The rights offering was fully
subscribed on January 9, 2015, with 17,277,224 shares of Senies C common stock issued to those nghtsholders exercising basic
and, as applicable, oversubscription privileges. The subscription rights were issued to raise capifal for general corporate purposes
of Liberty Broadband, The Broadband Spin-Off and rights offering were intended to be tax-free to stockholders of Liberty. Durning
September 2015, Liberty entered into a closing agreement with the IRS which provided that the Broadband Spin-Off qualified
fior tax-free treatment.

The financial information represents a combination of the historical financial information of TruePosition, Liberty
Broadband’s inferest in Charer, Libenty’s minority equity investment in Time Warner Cable and ceriain deferred tax liabilities,
as well as liabilities related to the Time Warner Cable written call options. This financial information refers to the combination
of the aforementioned subsidiary, investments, and financial mstruments, as “Liberty Broadband,” “the Company,” “us,” “we"
and “our” here and in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.,

Swaregies avd Challenges

Our results prior to May 2013 were largely dependent on the operating performance of TroePosition. In 2013 and future
periods, results for Liberty Broadband will be largely dependent upon the operating performance of Charter. Therefore, the
executive summary below contains the strategies and challenges of TruePosition and Charter,

TruePosition was incorporated on November 24, 1992, TruePosition develops and markets technology for locating
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network, enabling wireless cammiers to provide public safety E-9-1-1
services domestically and to enhance services in support of commercial applications, national security and law enforcement
worldwide, “E-8-1-17 refers 1o a series of FOC mandates requiring wireless carriers to implement and continuously improve the
ability 0 locate wireless callers requesting emergency services. Prior to 2015, TroePosition's location system offering was a
passive network overlay system using its patented U-TDOA technology. In 2015, TruePosition ceased making further investment
in its U-TDOA based product offenng and commenced the development and marketing of TrueFix, a location offering which 15
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an extension of Skyhooks WilF1 location technology that determines the location of a wireless device by matching received Wil
signals to the known locations of WiF1 access pomts contained in a proprietary reference database, TruePosition’s location system
calculates the latitude and longitude of a designated wireless telephone or transmitter and forwards the imformation in real time
to application software, Future enhancements, mcluding reverse geo-coding and the mtegration with a National Emergency
Address Database, may lead to refining the device location information to inchede a specific street address,

On February 14, 2014, TruePosition completed the acquisition of Skyhook, Skyhook operates a global location network
with maore than 1 billion geclocated WiFi access points, providing hybrd wireless positioning technology and contextual location
intelligence solutions worldwide, The large amount of data collected by Skyhook powers all of its products and provides Skyhook
the ability to offer location and geo-informed context to any mobile app or device. Skyhook’s location-based context solutions
provide a way for companies and agencies to understand consumers’ mobile behavior and improve mobile customer experience,
while also allowing advertisers to reach their audiences in new and relevant ways.

Charter is one of the largest providers of cable services in the United States with approximately 6.7 million residential
and small and medium business customers at December 31, 2015, offering a vanety of enteriainment, information and
communications solutions to residential and commercial customers, including traditional cable video programming, Internet
services, and voice services, as well as advanced video services such as video on demand, HD television and DVR service,
Charter also sells local advertising on eable networks and provides fiber conneetivity 1o cellular towers and office buldings, lis
infrastructure consists of a hybrid of fiber and coaxial cable plant with approximately 12.9 million estimated passings, with 97%
at 550 MHz or greater and 98% of plani miles two-way active and 99% of plant all-digital. A national IP infrasiructure
interconnects Charter markets. Liberty acguired its interest in Charter on May 1, 2003, At December 31, 2015, Liberty Broadband
owned approximaiely 28.8 million shares of Charter common stock, representing an approximate 26% ownership interest in the
1ssued and outstandmng shares, Under the Charter Stockholders Agreement, Liberty has the right to nominate four directors to the
Charter board of directors, subject to certain exclusions and requirements. Liberty Broadband also has the nght to cause one of
its nominees to serve on the nominating and corporate govemance, audit and compensation and benefits commitices of the board,
provided they meet the independence and other qualifications for membership on those committees. These rights were transferred
from Liberty to Liberty Broadband in connection with the Broadband Spin-Off. The Second Amended and Restated Stockholders
Agreement continues 1o provide us with board nomination rights.

Dirivers o M

TreePosition earns revenue from the sale of hardware and licensing of software required to generate location records for
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network and from the design, installation, testing and commissioning of
such hardware and software, In addition, TruePosition eams software maintenance revenue through the provision of ongoing
technical and software support. Through its Skyhook subsidiary, TruePosition eamns revenue from device manufacturers,
application providers and advertizing networks by licensing access to Skyvhook's location and geo-informed context network.

Charter revenue 15 derived pnncipally from the monthly fees customers pay for the residential and commercial video,
Infermet and voice services provided. Charter also eamns revenue from one-time installation fees and advertising sales. Charter
expects o confinue o grow revenue by increasing the number of products in the company s current customer homes and oblaining
new customers with an improved value offering. In addition, Charter expects o increase revenue by expanding the sales of
services 10 ils commercial cusfomers.

TruePosition’s location systems compete against a number of suppliers of both WiFi based technology solutions and
other satellite and ferrestrial based technology offerings. In addition, there are a number of new location technologies in
development which may further increase competition to be a location solution for new air interfaces o provide commercial
location based services and to meet more stringeni commercial and governmental accuracy standards. Other large technology
companies, such as Google, similarly facilitate the provision of location information to devices and applications operating on
their mobile platforms,

Charter faces competifion for both residential and commercial customers in the areas of price, service offerings, and
service reliability. With respect o its residential business, Charter competes with other providers of video, high-speed Intermet



aceess, telephone services, and other sources of home entertainment. With respect fo its commercial business, Charter competes
with other providers of video, high-speed Intemet access and related value-added services, fiber solutions, business telephony,
and Ethernet services. In the broadband communications industry, Charter’s principal competitors for video services are DBS
and telephone companies that offer video services. Charter’s principal competitors for high-speed Intemet services are the
broadband services provided by telephone companies, including both traditional DSL, fiber-to-the-node, and fiber-to-the-home
offerings. Charler’s principal competitors for telephone services are established telephone companies, other telephone service
providers, and other carriers, including VoIP providers. At this time, Charter does not consider other traditional cable operators
o be significant compeiitors i the overall market, as overbuilds are infrequent and geographically spotty (although m any
particular market, a cable operator overbuilder would likely be a significant competitor at the local level), Charter could, however,
face additional competition from multi-channel video providers if they began distnbuting video over the Intemet o customers
residing outside their current fermiornies,

TruePosition and Charter must stay abreast of rapidly evolving technological developments and offerings 10 remain
competitive and merease the utility of their products and services. These companies must be able to mcorporate new technologies
into their products and services in order to address the needs of their customers,

Results of O . Consoli
Consolidated operating results:

_Years ended December 31,

amounts in thomsamds

L T e S R A s e AR B GE R O Don a SO 5 91,182 69,045 77,363
Operating expenses, excluding stock-based compensation
Operaling expense. .. ......ooiiiiiiiiiinainanans 6,089 7,499 23,442
Selling, general and administrative . ... 36,814 46,946 33,317
Research and development e 16,637 18,311 15314
Adjusted OIBDA .. .ovviii i i i 31,642 (3,711) 5,290
Stock-based compensation .. ... ....oviiiii i 6,380 9499 Y06
Depreciation and amortization . . J0c 6,088 9.043 4,382
Gain on legal setllement ... ... ... . ... (60,450) {6,004 —
Impairment of intangible assets . ... 20,669 35,221 —
Operating income (loss) . .. _........ ... . 5 38,955 (42.974) {88}

Revenue

Revenue increased $22.1 million and decreased $8.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, as compared 1o the comresponding prior year periods. The increase in revenue during 2015 was primarily due to the
recognition of $35.5 million of deferred revenue upon the expiration of TruePosition's contract with its largest customer on
December 31, 2015, as all contractual obligations were satisfied at that time. This customer accounted for approximately 5%,
3% and 85% of TruePosition's revenue during 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. As a result, a significant decline in
TruePosition's fufure operating resulis is expected unless TruePosition is able to generate significant new business o replace the
financial impact of this customer. Exclusive of the recognition of the deferred revenue associated with this contract during 2015,
revenue decreased $13.4 mullion from the prior vear, due to a $15.3 million revenue decline at TruePosifion, partially offset by a
£1.9 million increase at Skyhook. The decrease in TruePosition's revenue was primarily a resull of reduced domestic software
and maintenance license fees, due to a reduction in the size of the deployved base of TruePosition’s technologies, This decrease
was parfially offset by a $1.9 million increase in revenue from Skyhook, due to a full year of revenue recognition during 2015,
a5 Skyhook was acquired during February 2014, The decrease in revenue during 2014 was primarily due to reduced domestic
hardware and software license sales as a resull of uneerainty around new FOCC indoor accuracy mandaies. As a resull of the
uncertainty, many wireless carrier companies delayed investments in location technologies. Additionally, TroePosition
experienced reduced hardware and sofiware license sales m the intermational markets which was partially offset by Skyhook
revenue subsequent to its acquisition in early 2014, Om January 29, 2015, the FCC adopted indoor location accuracy rules in its
Fourth Report and Order, redefining location accuracy standards that wireless carriers will be required to meet in future years,
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TruePosition”s technologies, including new technologies now under development, will compete with other technologies to satisfy
the new standards in the coming years,

Adjusted CNBDA

We define Adjusted OIBDA as revenue less operating expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses
{excluding stock compensation). Ouwr chief operating decision maker and management team use this measure of performance in
conjunciion with other measures to evaluale our businesses and make decisions aboui allocating resources among our businesses,
W believe this is an important indicator of the operational strength and performance of our businesses, including each business's
ability to service debt and fund capital expenditures. In addition, this measure allows us fo view operating results, perform
analytical comparisons and benchmarking between busmesses and wdentify strategies to improve performance, This measure of
performance excludes such costs as depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, separately reported litigation
setilements and restruciuring and impairment charges that are included in the measurement of operating income pursuant o
GAAP Accordingly, Adjusted OIBDA should be considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for, operating incoime, net
income, cash flow provided by operating activities and other measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with
GAAP See note 15 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for a reconeiliation of Adjusted OIBDA to Eamings
(lozs) from continuing operations before income taxes.

Adjusted OIBDA improved $35.4 million and decreased $9.0 million in the vears ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, as compared to the comesponding prior year periods. In addition to the £22.1 million increase in revenue, discussed
above, Adjusied OIBDA in 2015 was posifively impacted by a $10.2 million decline in legal expenses during the year (discussed
below) and a 53.1 million improvement in operating expenses during the year. The decrease in Adjusted OIBDA during 2014
was primanly a resull of mereased legal expenses, cost of the Skyhook acquisition and Skyhook generating negative Adjusted
OIBDA, partially offset by the full year impact of cost reduction measures undertaken in 2013, The reduction in overall revenue
of $8.3 million, discussed above, was offset by lower cost of goods sold of $13.2 million, primarily due to reduced imternational
sales, which have lower margins than domestic sales. During 2013 TreePosition entered info an international project for which
revenue was only recognized to the extent cash was received, as future collectability of revenue was unsure. Therefore, the gross
margin on that particular project was dependent on the paymenis received from the customer. This project was canceled as of the
end of 2013 and therefore there was less revenue and cost of goods sold recognized for the year ended December 31, 2014,

Legal expenses decreased $10.2 million and mereased 35.8 million m the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior years, Legal expenses are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses, The decrease in legal costs during 20135 and the increase in legal costs during 2014 is primanly a result of TruePosition's
antitrust lawsuit arising from the siandard sefting processes for LTE wireless data communication technology as it perfains to
location technology, which was senled during the third quarter of 2004, and Skyhook's patent infringement lawsuit against
Google, which was seitled during the first quarier of 2015. Additionally, lobbying costs of $431 thousand, $3.3 million and £3.4
million related 1o the mdoor accuracy regulations previously discossed were incurred during each of the vears ended December
31, 2015, December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Lobbying expenses are also included in selling, general and
administrative expenses. Subsequent to the first quarter of 2015, these costs have significantly declined due o rolemaking
timelines.

Merger costs of 8958 thousand and £624 thousand relafed to the Skyhook acquisition were incurred in 2014 and 2013,

respectively, No merger costs were incurred during 2015, Merger costs are included m selling, general and admimistrative costs,

Operating expenses, research and development, and selling, general and administrative, excluding legal expenses and
merger costs, discussed above, decreased $2.0 million and increased by §9.7 million in the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior year periods, The decrease in 2015 was largely due to a full vear
implementation of cost reduction measures al TreePosition, partially offsel by higher comorate selling, general and adminisirative
costs during the current vear. The increase in 2014 was primarily due to operating and selling, general and administrative expenses
related to Skyhook of £13.5 million agamst revenue of 8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014,



Operating Income (Lass)

Operating income (loss) improved $101.9 million and declined 5429 million for the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2004, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior year periods. In addiion to those items mmpacting Adjusted
OIBDA, operating income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2015 was further impacted by a favorable net legal settlement
of $60L5 million (an improvement of $54.5 million from the prior year) due to the settlement of Skvhook’s patent infringement
lawsuit against Google during the first quarter of 2015 and a decrease in depreciation and amortization of $3.0 million, pantially
offset by a £20.7 million impairment expense (a $14.6 million improvement from the prior year) recorded during the current vear
and an increase in stock-based compensation expense of $5.4 million. In addition 1o those items impacting Adjusted OIBDA,
operating income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2014 was further impacted by an inerease in depreciation and
amontization of $4.7 million and a $35.2 million impaimment of goodwill and intangible assets, partially offset by a $6.0 million
favorable legal setflement of the antitrust lawsuit in July 2004,

Stock-based compensation expense increased 55 .4 million and 53 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively. The increase in stock-based compensation durmg the current year was primarily due to the vesting of options
to purchase shares of Liberty Broadband Series C common stock granted duning December 2014 and an increase in the number
of options to purchase shares of Series © Libenty Broadband common stock granted during the current vear. Additionally,
TrugPosition s stock-based compensation mcreased during the current year due to the 1ssuance of new awards and additional
vesting of the outstanding awards under the plans, partially offset by cancelled awands,

Depreciation and amonization decreased £3.0 million and increased $4.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2004, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior year periods. The decrease in depreciation and amortization
expense during the current year 15 primarily due to lower amortization expense resulting from the impairment of TruePosition's
intangble assets related to Skyhook durng the fourth quarter of 2004 and wrte-off of fixed assets duning the first quarter of
2015, The assets written off were comprised of assets related to the abandonment of a product development project by
TruePosition during the period. The increase in 2004 was primarily due to the acquisition of Skyhook during the year,

Om September 10, 2000, Skvhook Wireless, Inc. filed a patent infringement lawsuil in the 1.5, District Court for the
District of Massachusenis against Google, Ine. In March 2013, Skyhook amended 165 lawsuit to add additional claims. The case
had been scheduled 1o be tried before a jury commencing March 9, 2015, with Skyhook alleging at that time that Google infringed
on eight Skyhook patents involving location technology and seeking an injunction and‘or award of damages in an amount (o be
determined at trial, However, on March 5, 20135, the parties advised the District Court that the case had been settled and thereby
dismissed the action without costs and without prejudice to the right, upon good cause shown within 45 days, to reopen the action
if settlement is not consummated. Cn March 27, 20135, the parties consummated a final setilement agreement and on April 24,
2015, Google paid Skyhook settlement consideration of 590 million. In return for payment of the senlement consideration,
Google received dismissal of the action with prejudice, a license to the existing Skyhook patents and patent applications (and
their continuations, divisionals, contmuations-in-part), a three-year covenant not to sue (subject to limited exceptions) and a
mutual release of claims. As a result of the seitlement, Skyhook realized a net gain, after legal fees, of approximately $60.5
million during the first quarter of 2015,

During September 2015, AT&T gave notice to TreePosition that it did not intend to renew its contract, which expired
on December 31, 2005, The Company believed that the receipt of the notificaiion represented a significant change m
circumstances since we last performed our annual goodwill mpairment test, Accordingly, we performed a goodwill mpamment
test upon receipt of the notification from TraePosition, Al that time, the estimated fair value of the reporting unit was primarily
determined based on the cash and cash equivalents held by the reporting unif, and when compared o its carrying value, it was
conchuded that a goodwill impairment did not exist. As previously discussed, the carrying value of TraePosition incleded a $35.5
million deferred revenue liability related to the contract with the largest customer, Upon expiration of the contract on December
31, 2015, the deferred revenue was recognized, as all contractual obligations were satisfied at that time. The recognition of this
deferred revenue liability increased the reporiing unit carrying value. As a result, the Company determined the fair value of
TruePosition. As the reporting unit’s carrying value exceeded the fair value, we performed a Step 2 impairment test and recorded
a 20,7 million impairment loss related to TraePosition’s goodwill during December 2015, See note 2 and note 7 in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional discussion regarding this impaimment loss,

In November 2014, Skyhook was notified that one of its significant customers was not expected 1o renew its contract
for 2015, As aresult, 30-40% of Skyhook's revenue was not expected to recur in 2015, Due to this anticipated decline in Skyhook's
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operations, the Company determined the fair value of Skyhook and performed a Step 2 impairment test, which resulted ina §35.2
million impaiment loss recorded to TruePosition’s goodwill and mtangible assets related to Skyhook during December 2014,
See note 2 and note 7 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional discussion regarding this impairment
loss.

Other Income and Expense:
Components of Other Income (Expense) are presented in the table below.

Years ended I her 31,
215 2014 EITE]

amonnts in thousands

Oiher income (expensc):
111 . 5 (7424) {1,138) —_
Dividend and interest income . ... ... L ii i i 3,797 5426 6,878
Share of camings (losses) of affilate ... . . ... ... ... (120,962)  (127,573)  (76,090)
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instruments,
[T e arE R n nenE R HOGACAND CHan BnORS BRCRag COBaC oo 2,619 51,189 97,860
Gain (loss) on dilution of investment in affiliate oo (7,198) {87, 158)  (92,933)
L 1T A SR A A R R R A G R SO S o RE O BR AR 00t 158 (63) (53)
$(129,010) (159317) (64,338)
Interest expense

Interest expense during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 15 antributable to two margin loans entered mto
with each of the lenders party thereto by BroadbandSPV on Cetober 30, 2014, in connection with and prior to the effectiveness
of the Broadband Spin-Off. See note £ in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information on the

margin loan agreements.

Dividend emd inferest income

Dividend and interest income decreased 1.6 million and $£1.5 million for each of the vears ended December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior year periods. The decrease in both vears was primarily due to
contraciual commitments on the Time Wamer Cable shares. Alihough the 2005 quarterly Time Warner Cable dividend rate
remained the same as 2014, a larger portion of the dividends were passed through to the counterparty in 2013, due to more written
call option contracts on Time Wamer Cable shares outstanding during 2015 than 2014 as well as the Time Wamer Cable collar
agreement that was outstanding for a portion of the current year, The Time Warner Cable dividend rate increased from 30,65 per
share per quarter in 2013 to $0.75 per share per quarter in 2014, However, interest and dividend income decreased in 2014 due
o contractual commitmenis on the Time Warner Cable shares, as a portion of the dividends were passed through to the
counterparty in 2004 based on the written call option contracts on Time Wamer Cable shares.

Shave of earnings (losses) of affiliates

Share of losses from affiliates improved $6.6 million and declined $51.5 million dunng the yvears ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior year periods, Share of losses from affiliates s attributable
to the Company’s ownership interest in Charter. In May 2013, the Company acquired approximately 26.9 million shares of
common siock and approximeately 1.1 million warranis in Charfer for approximately 52.6 billion, which represented an
approximate 27% beneficial ownership (including the warrants on an as ift converted basis) in Charter at the time of purchase.
Upon acquisition, the Company allocated the excess basis, between the book basis of Charter and fair value of the shares acquired,
and ascribed remaining useful lives of 7 years and 13 vears to property and equipment and customer relationships, respectively,
and indefmite lives to franchise fees, trademarks and goodwill. Outstanding debi is amortized over the contraciual period using
the effective interest rate method. Amortization related o debt and mtangible assets with identifiable useful lives is included n
the Company s share of carnings (losses) from affiliates line item in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
aggregated $51.6 million and $81.2 million, net of related taxes, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
See note 6 in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements for additional discussion of the Company’s
mmvestment m Charler.
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The following is a discussion of Charter’s stand alone results of operations. In order fo provide a better understanding,
of Charter’s operations, we have meluded a summanzed presentation of Charter’s results from operations, Charter is a separate
publicly traded company and additional information about Charter can be obtamed through its website and public filings. The
amounts included in the table below represent Charter's results for each of the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
Howewer, the portion of Charter's share of camings (losses) included in our consolidated financial statements only includes
Charier’s resulis from the time of acquisition (May 2013 ) through December 31, 2015,

Years ended December 31

2015 2014 23
ammmnds in oo llions
BEVEIME .+ oo ettt e et et e s 974 9,108 %155
Operating expenses, excluding stock-based compensation . . {6,437) {5, 980) (5.344)
Adjusted OIBDA ... ..o i T 3,128 2,811
Depreciation and amortizalion. . ........o.o.veeneneaca... (2,125) (2,102}  (1,854)
Stock-based compensation. . . . 0e0000 SGoooonon (78) {55} {48}
OpPLraling IMCOMIE. o\ vu v e e ne e ranens 1,114 971 B9
Oher expenses, Del. . ... ooovnee e iie e ne s anacans {1,445) (918) (958)
Wet income (loss) before income taxes. . . SnCconoooe (331) 53 {44)
Income tax benefil (eXpense) . ..o ov i iie e iiia Gl {236) {120}
L A A R e A B S O BB SR A e § (271 (183} {169}

Charter’s revenue mereased 5646 million and $933 million during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, as compared 1o the corresponding prior years. Revenue growth primanly reflects increases in the number of
residential Internet and triple play customers and in commercial business customers, growth in expanded basic and digital
penciration, promotional and annual rate increases, and higher advanced services penetration, partially offset by a decrease in
advertising sales in 2015 and a decrease in average basic video customers, Additionally, Charter's acquisition of Bresnan on
July 1, 2013 increased revenue by approximately £276 mallion in 2014 as compared to 2013,

The increase in revenue during 2015 was partially offset by the net impact of an increase in operaling expenses,
excluding stock-based compensation, of $457 million, The increase in operating expenses was primarily aftributable to an
increase m programming costs as a result of annual contractual rate adjustments, including ncreases in amounts paid for
retransmission consents, broader camage of certain networks as a result of Charter's all-digital imtiative and the ntroduction of
new networks to Charter’s video offening as well as 2014 expense benefits not recurring i 2015, Depreciation and amortization
also increased $23 million, stock compensation expense remained flar, other expenses increased $527 million and income tax
benefit (expense) improved 5296 million. The increase in depreciation and amortization expense 13 primanly aftributable to the
depreciation on recent capital expenditures, partially offset by certain assets becoming fully depreciated. The ncrease in other
expenses 1s primarily atiributable to an merease of 3431 million of mterest expense during 2015 related o debt held in escrow
dunng the vear to fund the Comeast Transactions, Time Wamer Cable Merger and the Bright House Transaction, as defined in
note 6 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Additionally, Charter recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt
of £128 million during 2015 in connection with the repayment of certain ferm loans during April 2015, The income tax benefil
recognized in 20135 was primarily due to the deemed liquidation of Chaner Communications Holding Company, LLC (*Charter
Holdeo™) solely for federal and state income fax purposes, resulting in a $187 million deferred income tax benefit offset by
income fax expense recognized during 2015, primarily through increases in deferred tax lisbilities. Charter owns a 100% equity
interest in Charter Holdeo and was treated as a partnership for tax purposes prior to July 2, 20015, The impact of the election to
treat Charter Heldeo as a disregarded entity resulted in a $16% million net deferred income tax benefit. Income tax benefil
(expense) also improved due to a reduction in tax amortization for fully amorized intangible assets that are indefinite-lived for
hook purposes.

The increase in revenue during 2014 was partially offset by the net impact of a $636 million increase in operating
expenses, excluding stock compensation expense, a 3248 million increase in depreciation and amorization expense, a 37 million
inerease in stock-based compensation expense, a $40 million decrease i other expenses and an inerease in INCome 1ax expense
of £116 million. The increase in operating expense is primarily attributable to a full year of costs associated with Chaner’s
acquisition of Bresnan on July 1, 2013, increases in programming cosis as a result of annual contractual rate adjusiments,
including increases in amounts paid for retransmission consents and for new programming, offset in part by video customer
losses. Transition costs related to transactions with Comcast accounted for §14 million of total 2014 operating costs. The increase
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in depreciation expense is prmarnly atinbutable to the acquisition of Bresnan and depreciation on recent capital expenditures,
partially offset by certain assets becoming fully depreciated. The increase m stock-based compensation expense was due to an
increase in the number of options granted during the year along with an increase in the weighted average grant price of options
and restricted stock granted and vested during the year, The decrease in other expenses is primanly attributable to a 8123 million
loss on extinguishment of debt that was recognized during the vear ended December 31, 20013, Income tax expense for the vear
ended December 31, 2013 included a step-up in basis of indefinife-lived assets for fax, but not GAAP purposes, resulting from
the effects of partnership gains related 1o financing transactions, which decreased Charter's net deferred tax liability related 1o
indefinite-lived assets resulting in a benefit of $67 million.

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on fimancial instraments, net

Realized and unrealized gains on financial mstrumenis, net decreased $48.6 million and $46.7 million for each of the
vears ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior vear periods. Net realized amd
unrealized losses on financial nstroments dunng 20135 were atinbutable o changes in the fair value of our mvestment in Time
Wamer Cable and corresponding collar agreement and written call options. The change in fair value of our investment in Time
Warner Cable is fypically direcily correlated to changes in the underlying Time Warner Cable stock price. The change in fair
value of our derivative instruments related 1o our investment in Time Wamner Cable is typically inversely correlated to changes
in the underlying Time Warner Cable stock price. The net realized and unrealized gain of $2.6 million during 2015 was primarily
due 1o gans in the fair value of our mvestment in Time Warner Cable, partially offset by losses on the Time Wamer Cable call
options and collar, due to increases in the Time Wamer Cable stock price during the vear. Realized and unrealized gains on
financial instrumenis, net during 2004 were primarily atiribuiable to changes in fair value of the Charter warranis, Changes. in
the fair value of the Charter warrants were direcily correlated to changes in the underlying Charter share price. A gain of $32.8
million attributable to the Charter warrants acguired during May 2013 was due (o an improvement in the Charter price per share
of outstanding stock during the year ended December 31, 2014, As discussed in note 6 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, Liberty Broadband exercised of all of the Company's outstanding Charter warrants during November 2004,
subsequent to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off. Additionally, a net gain of $18.4 million on the investment in Time
Warmner Cable shares and outstanding call options were recorded during 2014, The net gain was primarily due 1o gains in our
investment in Time Wamner Cable, partially offset by losses on the Time Wamer Cable call options, due fo an improvement in the
Tirme Warner Cable price per share of outstanding stock during the respective period.

Gain (lass) on difution af imvestment in equity affifiate

The losses in 2015 and 2014 are the result of the issuance of Charter common stock from the exercise of warrants and
stock options held by outside investors {employees and other third parties), at prices below Liberty Broadband’s book basis per
share. As Liberty Broadband’s ownership in Charter changes due to exercises of Charter warrants and stock options, a loss is
recorded with the effective sale of common stock, because the exercise price of Charter warrants or stock options is typically
lovwer than the book value of the Charter shares held by Liberty Broadband.

CHher, met

Other income {expenses) improved $221 thousand and declined $10 thousand for each of the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2004, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior year periods, The improvement during 2015 15 primarily
attributable to a gain on TruePosition fixed assets that were retired during the year. The decling in 2004 is primarily atributable
to an increase in income tax penaliies during the vear.

Incame taxes

Our effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2004 and 2013 was 28%, 33% and 35%, respectively.
During 2015, our effective tax rate was lower than the federal tax rate of 35% primarily due to the non-deductible impairment of
goodwill related to TruePosition. Dunng 2014, our effective tax rate was lower than the federal tax rate of 35%; primarily due o
the non-deductible impairment of goodwill and other amortizable intangible assets related to Skyhook.

Net econings (losses)

We had net losses of $50.2 million, $134.6 million and $41.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The change in net losses was the result of the above-described Aluctuations in our revenue, expenses and other
gains and losses.



Liguidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2015 substantially all of our cash and cash equivalents are invested i US. Treasury securities,
other government securitics or government guaranteed funds, AAA rated money market funds and other highly rated financial
and corporate debt mstruments,

The following are potential sources of liquidity: available cash balances, cash generated by the operating activities off
our privately-owned subsidiaries (fo the exieni such cash exceeds the working capital needs of the subsidiaries and is not
otherwise restricted), proceeds from asset sales, monetization of our other investments, outstanding debi facilities, debt and equity
issuances, and dividend and interest receipts.

As of December 31, 2015, Liberty Broadband had a cash balance of $655.1 mullion, In addition, Liberty Broadband had
£438.9 million of unencumbered available for sale securities.

Years ended December 31

2015 2014 2013

amounts in thousands

Cash flow information
MNet cash provided (used) by operating activities. . . & 34072 2,728 5475
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities .. . 5 (2,479) {209.986) {2,624,868)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities . . 5 578677 242 816 2,618,613

TruePosition generally collects the majority of ifs annual software maintenance from its customers dunng the first
quarter of each calendar vear, which is the most significant factor contributing to the cash generated from operations during 2014
and 2013, The most significant factor coniribuiing o the cash generated from operations during 2005 was the receipi by Skyhook
of legal sentlement proceeds, partially offset by the payment of legal fees. Due to the expiration of TruePosition’s contract with a
significant customer on December 31, 2015, we expect a decling in cash flows from operations in future periods.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, our primary use of cash was $182.1 million in net settlements of financial
instruments. This use of cash was funded by cash on hand and the receipt of $697.3 million in net proceeds from the rights
offering during the year,

The projected use of our cash will be the contimeed operational needs of our subsidiary, including potential investment
in location fechnology ai TruePosition, or ofher invesiment opporfunities. As discussed in note 6 of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, in support of the Time Warner Cable Merger, the Company expects to issue 54.4 billion
additional shares of Liberty Broadband Series C common stock in order o purchase $4.3 billion in shares of New Charter,
However, Liberty Broadband has the nght, and may determine, to meur debt financing (subject to cerlain conditions) to fund a
portion of the purchase price for such shares of Mew Charter, in which case Liberty Broadband may reduce the aggregate Series
C share subscripiions by up to 25%, with such reduction applied pro rata fo all investors. The Series C share subscriplions are
subject to customary closing conditions, and funding will enly occur upon the completion of the Time Wamer Cable Merger.
Furthermore, as also discussed in note 6 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, Liberty Broadband expects to
use a portion of the proceeds from the nghts offermg to purchase an additional $700 million of New Charter shares in connection
with Charter’s proposed acquisition of Bright House Networks from AN,



ff-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractnal Obligations

Information concerning the amount and fiming of required paymenis, both accrued and off-balance sheet, under our
contractual obligations, excluding wneertain tax positions as it 15 indeterminable when payments will be made, is summarized
helow,

Favments doe by period

Less than Alfter
Total 1 year 2 - Xyears 4 -5 vears S years

amonnis in thawsands
Consolidated contractual ohligations

Long-termdebt .. ... S 400,000 — 400,000 — —

Inferest payments .. .. .........eiiioinie.s £ 130 8,626 7,285 - —

Operating lease obligations . ............ oo g 2,324 1,161 1,163

OBEE (1N .+t et £ 3,166 3,166 =
Total .. ..o S 421401 12,953 A8 448 — —

(1) Includes TrucPosition open purchase orders and other guarantees.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumplions
that affect the reporied amounis of asseis and liabilities af the date of the financial siatements and the reporied amounis of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Listed below are the accounting estimates and accounting policies that we believe are
critical to our financial statements due to the degree of uncertamty regarding the estimates or assumions mvolved and the
magnitude of the asset, Lability, revenue or expense being reported. All of these accounting estimates and assumptions, as well
as the resulting impact to our financial statements, have been discussed with our audil commitiee.

Application of the Eguity Method of Acconnting for Investments in Affiliates.  For those invesiments in affiliates in
which the Company has the ability 1o exercise significant influence, the equity method of accounting is used. Under this method,
the investment, originally recorded at cost, 15 adjusted to recognize the Company s share of net eamings or losses of the affiliate
as they oceur rather than as dividends or other distributions are received. Losses are limited to the extent of the Company’s
investment in, advances to and commitments for the investee, The Company determines the difference between the purchase
price of the investee and the underlying equity which results i an excess basis in the investment, This excess basis is allocated
to the underlying assets and liabilities of the Company's investee through a purchase accounting exercise and is allocated within
memo accounts wsed for equity accounting purposes. Depending on the applicable underlying assets, these amounis are either
amortized over the applicable useful lives or determined to be indefinite lived.

Changes in the Company 's proportionate share of the underlying equity of an equity method investee, which result from
the issvance of addional equity  secunties by such  equity  mvestee, o investors  other than  the
Company, are recognized in the statement of operations through the gain (loss) on dilution of investment in affiliate line item,
We periodically evaluate our equity method investment to determine if decreases in fair value below our cost basis are other than
temporary. If a decline in fair value is determined to be other than temporary, we are requited to reflect such decline in our
consolidated statement of operations. Other than temporary declines in fair value of our equity method mvestment would be
included m share of eamimgs (losses) of affiliates in our consolidated statement of operations.

The primary factors we consider in our determination of whether declines in fair value are other than temporary are the
lengith of time that the fair value of the invesiment 15 below our carrying value: the severity of the decline; and the financial
condition, operating performance and near term prospects of the investee. In addition, we consider the reason for the decline in
fair value, be it general market conditions, industry specific or investee specific: analysts’ ratings and estimates of 12 monih share
price targets for the investes; changes in stock price of valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date; and our intent and ability
to hold the invesiment for a period of Gme sufficient (o allow for a recovery in fair value. Fair value of our publicly traded cost
and equity mvestments 15 based on the market prices of the investments at the balance sheet date, We estimate the fair value of



our non-public cost and equity investmenis using a varety of methodologies, including cash flow multiples, discounted cash
flow, per subscriber values, or values of comparable public or private businesses. Impairments are caleulated as the difference
between our carrying value and our estimate of fair value. As our assessment of the fair value of our invesiments and any resulting
impairment losses and the timing of when to recogmize such charges requires a high degree of judgment and includes sigmificant
estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ materially from our estimates and assumptions.

Our evaluation of the fair value of our investments and any resulting impairment charges are made as of the most recent
balance sheet date. Changes in fair value subsequent to the balance sheet date due 0 the factors described above are possible.
Subsequent decreases in fair value will be recognized in our consolidated statement of operations in the period in which they
oceur to the extent such decreases are deemed to be other than temporary, Subsequent increases in fair value will be recognized
in our consolidated statement of operations only upon our ultimate disposition of the investment.

Fair Value of Non-Financial fnstroments.  Our non-financial instrument valuations are primarily comprised of our
determination of the estimated fair value allocation of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in business
combinations, our annual assessment of the recoverability of our goodwill and other nonamortizable miangibles, and our
evaluation of the recoverability of our other long-lived assels upon certain triggering events.

The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of its intangible assets with definie lives and other long-lived
assels or assel groups, including property and equipment, 10 be used in operations whenever events or changes n circumsiances
indicate that the camrying amount of the assets or asset groups might not be recoverable. Factors that would necessitate an
impairment assessment include a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which an asset is used, a significant
adverse change in legal factors or the business climate that could affect the value of the asset group, or a significant decline in
the observable market value of an asset group, among others. If such facts indicate a potential mpairment, the recoverability of
the assel group 15 assessed by determining whether the carrying value of the asset group exceeds the sum of the projected
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset group over the remaining economic
life of the assei group. If the carrying amount of the asset group 18 greater than the expected undiscounted cash flows to be
generated by such asset group, including its ultinate disposition, an impairment adjustment is recognized.

The accounting guidance permits entities to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely
than not that an idefinite-lived mtangible asset is mpaired. If the qualitative assessment supports that it 1s more likely than not
that the carrying value of the Company's indefinite-lived infangible assets, other than goodwill, exceeds s fair value, then a
quantitative assessment 15 performed,

If the carrving value of our intangible or long-lived assets exceeds their estimated fair value, we are required o write
the carrying value down to fair value, Any such wriledown is included in impairment expense in our consolidated statement of
operations. A high degree of judgment is required to estimate the fair value of our intangible and long-lived assets. We may use
quoted market prices, prices for similar assets, present value technigues and other valuation technigues to prepare these estimates,
We may need to make estimates of future cash flows and discount rates as well as other assumptions in order to implement these
valuation techniques, Due to the high degree of judgment involved in our estimation techniques, any value ultimately derived
from our intangible or long-lived assets may differ from our estimate of fair value. As each of our operating segmenis have
intangible assets, this critical accounting policy affects the financial position and results of operations of each segment.

As of December 31, 20135, the Company had $6.5 million of goodwill, atiributable to the Company's acquisition of
Skyhook, primarily related to assembled workforces, non-contractual relationships and other intangibles that do not qualify for
separate recognition,

W perform our annual assessment of the recoverability of our goodwill in the fourth quarter each vear, The Company
utilizes a qualitative assessment for determining whether step one of the goodwill impairment analysis is necessary. The
accounting guidance permiis enfifies to first assess gualitative factors fo determine whether if is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-
step goodwill imparrment test, In evaluating goodwill on a qualitative basis, the Company reviews the business performance of
each reporting unit and evaluates other relevant factors as identified in the relevant accounting guidance to determing whether it
is more likely than not that an indicated impairment exists for any of our reporting units, The Company considers whether there
are any negative macroeconomic conditions, indusiry specific conditions, market changes, mereased competition, increased costs



in doing business, management challenges, the legal environments and how these factors might impact company specific
performance in future periods. As part of the analysis, the Company also considers fair value determinations for certain reporting
units that have been made at various points throughout the current and prior year for other purposes. In mid-November 2014,
Skyhook was notified that one of its signifieant customers, representing approximately 30-40% of its revenue, was not expected
to renew its contract for 2015, Due to this anticipated decline in Skyhook's operations, the Company determined the fair value of
Skyhook and performed a Step 2 impairment fest, which resulied ina $35.2 million impairment loss recorded related to Skyhook’s
goodwill and intangible assets during December 2014, During September 2015, TruePosition's largest custoner gave notice that
it did not miend to renew its contract, which expired on December 31, 20015, The Company believed that the receipt of the
nohfication represented a significant change in circumstances since we last performed our annual goodwill impairment test,
Accordingly, we performed a goodwill impairment test upon receipd of the notification from TruePosition. At that time, the
estimaled fair value of the reporiing unit was prmarnly determined based on the cash and cash equivalenis held by the reporiing
unit, and when compared to its carrying value, it was concluded that a goodwill impairment did not exist. The carrying value of
TruePosition included a 3355 million deferred revenue Lability related to the contract with the largest customer. Upon expiration
of the contract on Decernber 31, 2015, the deferred revenue was recognized, as all contractual obligations were satisfied at that
time, The recognition of this deferred revenue liability increased the reporting unit carrying value. As a result, the Company
determined the fair value of TruePosition. As the camying value exceeded the fair value, we performed a Step 2 impairment fest
and recorded a $20.7 million impairment loss related to TruePosition’s goodwill during December 2015,

Fair Value of Financial Instraments,  All marketable debt and equity securities held by the Company are classified
as available-for-sale (“AF5") and are carried at fair valee generally based on quoted market prices. Fair values are determined
for each individual security in the investment portfolio. GAAP permits entities (o choose (o measure many financial instruments,
such as AFS securities, and certain other items at fair value and to recognize the changes in fair value of such instruments m the
entity’s statements of operations (the “Fair Value Option™). Liberty Broadband has elected the Fair Value Option for those of its
AFS secunities which it considers to be non-strategic (“Fair Value Option Securnities™). Accordingly, changes in the fair value of
Fair Value Option Securities, as determined by quoted market prices, are reponted in realized and unrealized gain (losses) on
financial instruments i the accompanying consolidaied statemenis of operations. A small poriion of the Company’s AFS
securities are nol designated as Fair Value Option Secunities and are reviewed from time to time in order to determine whether a
decline in fair value below the carrying value is other than temporary. The primary factors considered in this determination are
the length of time that the far value of the investment is below the camying value, the severity of the decline, and the financial
condition, operating performance and near term prospects of the investee. In addition, the Company considers the reason for the
decline in fair value, be i general markel conditions, industry specific or invesiee specific: analysis” rafings and estimates of
12 month share price targets for the investee; changes in stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date; and the
Company's infent and ability to hold the investment for a period of fime sufficient fo allow for a recovery in fair value. If the
decling in fair value is deemed to be other than temporary, the carrying value of the security is written down to fair value. In
sifuations where the fair value of an investment is not evident due to a lack of public market price or other factors, the Company
uses its best estimates and assumptions 1o amve at the estimated fair value of such investments. The Company’s assessment of
the foregoing factors involves considerable management judgment and accordingly, actual results may differ materially from the
Company's estimates and judgmenis. Wriledowns of AFS secunities would be included in the consolidated statemenis of
operations as other than temporary declines in fair values of investments. There were no impairment charges recorded during
2015, 2014 or 2013,

All of the Company’s derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value. If the denivative is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and of the hedged
ifem atiributable o the hedged risk are recogmized in eamings. If the derivative is designaied as a cash flow hedge, the effective
portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive eamings and are recognized in the
statement of operations when the hedged item affects earmings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow
hedges are recognized in eamnings. If the derivative is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are
recognized in camings. None of the Company’s derivatives are currently designated as hedges.

The fair value of certain of the Company s derivative instruments are estimated using the Black Scholes Meron option-
pricing model (“Black-Scholes model™). The Black-Scholes model incomporates & mumber of varigbles in determining such fair
values, including expecied volatility of the underlying security and an appropriate discount rate. The Company obiains volatility
rates from pricing services based on the expected valatility of the underlying security over the remaining term of the derivative
instrument. A discount rate 15 obiained af the inception of the derivative instrument and updated each reportmg penod, based on
the Company s estimate of the discount rate at which it could currently settle the denvative mstrument. The Company considered
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its own credit risk as well as the credif risk of its counterparties in estimating the discount rate. Management judgment is required
in estimating the Black-Scholes variables,

Revenne Recognition.  TruePosition carns revenue from the sale of hardware and licensing of software required to
generate location records for wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network and from the design, installation,
testing, and commissioning of such hardware and software. In addition, TroePosition eams software maintenance revenue through
the provision of ongeing technical and software suppon.

TruePosition's tangible products contain software components and non-software components that function together to
deliver the tangible products” essenfial functionality. Under the applicable accounting guidance, arrangements for such products
are excluded from the scope of software revenue recognition guidance and are subject to the guidance for multiple-element
amrangements. Accordingly, for multiple-clement arrangements entered into or materially modified on or after Jameary 1, 2011,
the overall arrangement fee is allocated o each element (both delivered and undelivered items) based on their relative selling
prices, regardless of whether those selling prices are evidenced by vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) or thind-party
evidence of selling price or are based on the entity s estimated selling price. The associated revenue for each element is recognized
upon delivery assuming all other eriteria for revenue recognition are met.

For armangements which do not qualify for reatment under the guidance, TruePosifion continues to account for such
amrangements consistent with the outstanding guidance for software revenue recogmtion, Under those policies, for revenue
derived from multiple-clement amrangements, if VSOE exists for each of the clements of the arrangement at the outset, the
Company allocates the revenue to the various elements for recognition upon delivery of each element. If not, the revenuve is
deferred until the earlier of establishing sufficient VSOE for allocating revenue for recognition or delivery of all of the elements.
If & multiple-element arrangement includes post-contract customer support (commonly referred 1o as maintenance), VSOE must
exist for the maintenance in order to allocate revenue to all of the elements of the arrangement. If VSOE does not exist for the
maintenance, revenue for the entire amrangement is recognized ratably over the contrachual or expected term of the maintenance
arrangement.

Direct costs related 1o multiple-element arrangements are deferred and recognized as the related revenue is recognized.
Dhirect costs mclude mstallation services, hardware, and software costs,

TruePosition's multiple-element arrangement with its significant costomer also contemplates usage-based transaction
fees for certain commercial uses of TruePosition's hardware and software. To daie, no transaction fees have been camed.

TreePosition also provides training, technical, and repair services under its multiple-element arrangements. Revenue is
recognized upon delivery of the services,

In May 2014, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on revenue from contracis with customers. The new guidance
requires an entity 1o recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or
services o customers, The updated guidance will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes
effective and permits the use of either a retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. This guidance is effective for fiscal
years, and interinn periods within those fiscal vears, beginning after December 13, 2007, The Company is currently evaluating
the effect that the new siandard may have on iis revenue recognition and has not vet selecied a iransition method but does not
believe the standard will significantly impact its financial statements and related disclosures.

Income Taves.  We are required to estimate the amount of tax payable or refundable for the current year and the
deferred income tax liahilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been reflected m our financial
statements or tax retums for each taxing jurisdiction in which we operate. This process requires our management 10 make
Judgments regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact of the various agreements and transactions that we
enter into. Based on these judgments we may record tax reserves or adjustments to valuation allowances on deferred tax assets
to reflect the expected realizability of future fax benefits. Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due to future
changes in income tax law, significant changes in the jurisdictions in which we aperate, our inability to generate sufficient future
taxable income or unpredicted results from the final determination of each year's liability by taxing authonties. These changes
could have a significant impact on our financial position.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Wi are exposed 1o market risk in the normal course of business due 1o our ongoing investing and financial activities.
Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in stock prices and interest rates. The sk of loss can be assessed
from the perspective of adverse changes in fair values, cash flows and future carnings, We have established policies, procedures
and internal processes goveming our management of market risks and the use of Minancial instruments 10 MANAZE OUT EXPOSUTE
1o such risks.

W are exposed 1o changes in interest rates primarily as a resull of our borrowing and investment activities, which
include investments in fixed and floating rate debt instruments and borrowings used to maintan liquidity and to fund business
operations, The nature and amount of our long-term and shori-term debt are expected to vary as a result of future requirements,
market conditions and other factors. We manage our exposure to interest rales by maintaining what we believe is an appropriate
mix of fixed and vanable rale debi. We believe this best protecis us from inleresi rate risk. We expect to achieve this mix by (i)
issuing fixed rate debt that we believe has a low stated mterest rate and significant term to maturity, (i) issuing vanable rate debt
with appropriate matunties and interest rates and (1i1) enlering info inferest rafe swap arrangements when we deem appropriate.
As of December 31, 2015, our debt is comprised of the following amounts:

Variable rate debt Fined rate debt
Principal Wilghited avg Principal Wiekghted avg
apoml interest rate amaouil interest rate
dollar amonnis in millions
13 40y 22% ] — NA

Wi are exposed to changes in siock prices primarily as a result of our significant holdings in publicly traded secunties,
We continually monitor changes in stock markets, in general, and changes in the stock prices of our holdings, specifically. We
believe that changes in stock prices can be expecied o vary as a result of general market conditions, technological changes,
specific industry changes and other factors. We periodically use equity collars and other financial instroments 1o manage market
risk associated with certam mvestment positions. These mstraments are recorded at fair value based on option pricing models,

Al December 31, 2015, the fair value of our AFS equity securifies was $439.6 million. Had the market price of such
securities been 10% lower at December 31, 2013, the aggregate value of such securities would have been 544.0 million lower.
Additionally, our stock in Charter (our equity method affiliate) is publicly traded and not reflected at fair value in our balance sheet,
Our investment in Charter is also subject to market risk that is not directly reflected in our financial statements,

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The consolidated financial statements of Liberty Broadband Corporation are mcluded herein begmning on Fage F-21,

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Controls and Procedures.

In accordance with Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of management, including s chief executive officer and its principal accounting and
financial officer (the "Execufives”), of the effectiveness of itz disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Executives concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of December 31, 2015 o provide reasonable assurance that information required (o be disclosed in s reporis



filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summanzed and reported within the time periods specified in
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms,

See page F-19 for Management's Report on Internal Contral Over Financial Reporting,

See page F-20 for Repart of Mndependent Registeved Pullic Accownring Fivm for their attestation regarding our intermal
control over financial reporiing.

There has been no change in the Company’s intermal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three
months ended December 31, 2015 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over
financial reporting,

Other Information,

None.



MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Liberty Broadband Corporation’s {the "Company”) management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
intemal control over the Company’s financial reporting, as such term 15 defined in Rule 13a - 15(f) of the Secunties Exchange
Act of 1934, The Company's intemal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or defect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness (o future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies and procedures may deteriorate,

The Company's management assessed the effectiveness of intermal control over financial reponting as of December 31, 2015,
using the criteria in fnternal Control-Infegrated Framework (2041 3), 1ssued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation the Company's management believes that, as of December 31, 2015, its internal
control over financial reporting is effective.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm andited the consolidated financial statements and related

disclosures in the Annuwal Report on Form 10-K and have issued an audit report on the effectiveness of the Company’s intermal
control over financial reponting. This report appears on page F-20 of this Anmal Report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Liberty Broadbard Corporation:

We have audifed Liberty Broadband Corporation’s (the Company) internal control over finencial reporting as of December 31,
2015, based on cniteria established i fvernal Control — Imtegrated Framework (201 3) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0), The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporing and for its assessment of the effectiveness of infernal conirol over financial reporiing,
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s interal control over financial reporting based on our audii.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether effiective intemal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control
over financial reporfing, assessing the risk that a matenial weakness exisis, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of intermal control based on the assessed nisk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumsiances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opimion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exiemal purposes in accordance with generally
acoepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) periain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable deiail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 25 necessary to permil preparation
of financial statemenis in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authonzations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wse, or disposition of the company s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of iis inherent limitations, infernal control over financial reporling may not prevent or defect missiatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the nsk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Liberty Broadband Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in fnfermal Conirol - Infegrated Framework (201 3) issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COS0).

We also have audited, m accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Liberty Broadband Corporation as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive camings (loss), cash flows, and equity for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 20135, and our report dated February 12, 20016 expressed an ungualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements,

s/ KFMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 12, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Liberty Broadband Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Liberty Broadband Corporation (the Company) as of
December 31, 2005 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive camings (loss), cash flows,
and equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2015, These consolidated financial statemenis are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statemenis based on our audits.

We conducted our andits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimales
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonahble basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenial respects, the consolidated
financial position of Liberty Broadband Corporation as of December 31, 2005 and 2014, and the resulis of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years in the three-vear period ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S. generally
aceepled accouniing principles,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States),
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in frernal
Corttrod — Integrared Froamewark (201 3) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

{COS0), and our report dated February 12, 2016, expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

s/ KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 12, 2016



LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2005 and 2014

2013 2014
amounts in thonsands
Assets
Current assets:
Cashandcashequivalents. .. ... ...c.oiceiiciieaaiieasscsnscsiaeasnscansns 5 655,079 44 B09
Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $138
thousand and $45 thousand, respectively 3 462 617
Restrictedecash. . ... ... ... ... .. .. 000 32 4,082
Short-term marketable securities ... .. i 9014 G001
L T 11,660 10,639
Total currenf assefs . ... . ..ot iiiiiiai e 000 000000000 678,247 69 148
Invesiments in available-for-sale securities (note 5) 439 560 360,762
Investments in affiliates, sccounted for using the equity method (note &) . ......... 2,372,699 2,498 804
Property and equipment, DEL .. ... e e 1,248 3,590
L2 LT P U I O Ry o 6,497 27,166
Infangible asseis subject (o arn.umzalmn nel (noie .lj 11,887 12,915
Deferred income tax assets (note 9) R 55,368 30,822
OMBerassels . . ..o i i i B 235 2o
Total assets , . § 3,565,741 3,003,471
Liabilivies and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities L] 10,493 15,953
Deferred revenue .. ...ooovieiiiiinann. Ceae 2,629 5,947
Derivative mstruments {note 4) _ ... ... e — 75356
Other current liabilities 2,254 2,340
Total current liabilities Soeo 15,376 99,596
e B o et eta s aratelaatat et i alal ers st i teie e bt e tatal i e 2 399,703 371,539
Dreferred PEVEIIUIE. L.ttt ot e it e e e e 2443 37,567
L TR L T S e e e e e R R R S SRS SR A S S AR S S e 417,522 508,702

Equity

Preferred stock, 5.01 par value. Authorized 50,000,000 shares; no shares issued . — —
Series A common stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 500,000,000 shares; issued and

outstanding 26,163,206 and 26,126,459 at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

(g~ - s e e S S S S R S SR S SRS R R S A B RS RS R R 262 261
Series B common stock, 5,01 par value. Authorized 18,750,000 shares: issued and

oulstanding 2,467,547 at December 31, 2015 and 2014 25 25

Senes C common stock, $.01 par value, Authorized 500,000,000 shares; issued and

outstanding 74,643,546 and 57,189,897 at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

U= ] e S S e S S RS S S SR O e SR S e e e R T 572

Additional paid-in capital 3,537,848 2,835,373

Accumulated other comprehensive eamings, net of taxes . B.905 7918

Retained earmmgs (accumulated deficit) R {399 567) {349 3800
BT 3,148,219 2,454,769

Commitments and contingencies (ofe 14, ... ..ouieonion i iiieiinanas - -

Total liabilities and equity. . ... .. ... .. § 3565741 3,003 471

See accompanymng notes o consolidated financial statements.



LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Total revenue
Operating costs and expenses

Operating, including stock-based compensation (notes 3,11)
Selling, general and admimstrative, including stock-based compensation
w7 B O e S S P I R O S S e
Research and development, including stock-based compensation (nofes 3,11) ..
Gain on legal settlement ... . . oL
Impairment of infangible assets (note 7)
Depreciation and amortization

Operating income (loss)
Other income (expense):
Iilarest EEXDOIE.. . o oviion imanm imn e i md B e e B e i e e e
Dividend and inferest meome .. ..ooooii i
Share of earnings (losses) of affiliate (note 6)
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instruments, net (note 4) . ..
Gam (loss) on dilution of mvestment m affiliate (note 6). .. .. ..
L
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income faxes ... .........
Income tax benefit (expensed. .. .. .. ... ..
MNet eamnings (loss) attributable 1o Liberty Broadband sharcholders . .........
Basic earnings {loss) from continuing operations aifributable to Series A, Series B
and Series C Liberty Broadband shareholders per common share (note 3 .. .. ...
Diluted net earnings (loss) atinbuiable to Series A, Series B and Senes C Liberty
Broadband shareholders per commaon share (note 3)

s 2014 2013
armmunts in thomsands,
except per share amounts

& 76,139 58,426 61,264
15,043 10,619 16,098
91,182 60 045 77,363
6,096 TED0 23444
42,792 47,778 34,068
17,032 13477 15,557
(60,450) {6,000) —
20,665 35,221 —
6,083 9043 4,382
32,227 112,019 7451
58,955 (32,974) (%8)
(7.424) (1,138) -
3,797 5,426 6,878
(120962)  (127573)  (76,090)
2,619 51,189 97860
(7,198) (87,158)  (92,933)
158 (63) (53)
(70,053)  (202,291)  (64.426)
19,868 67,6860 22,698
5 (50,187)  (134.605)  (41,728)
S (049) (1.52) {047)
S (0.49) (1.52) {0.47)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings (Loss)

Years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2013

ELE] 2014 013
amounts in thowsands
Net camings (loss) . ........ onoonon Sl eTepe TSt HeBC00RnnOo00ann R0 s § (50,187 (134,605) (41,728)
Other comprehensive eamings (loss), net of taxes:
Unrealized holding gains {losses) ansing during the period. .. ............ (287) {3,163) 2,105
Share of other comprehensive eamings (loss) of equity affiliate ... .. .. ... 1,274 3,191 3,745
Other comprehensive eamings (loss), net of taxes ... ... ... 987 28 5,850

Comprehensive eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Broadband shareholders. 5 (49,200) (134.577) {35,878)

See accompanying noies to consolidated financial stalements.
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

2015 014 013
amsomnis in thomsands

Cash flows from operating activities:
Meteamimge (Joss) . . ... .. oo e e e s 5 (50,187) (134,605) (41,728)
Adjustments to reconcile net camings {loss) to net cash provided by
operating sctivities:

Depreciation and amortization. .. o ey 6,088 9,043 4,382
Stock-based compensation. ... ......... ... ... i 6,380 999 TG
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation. .. .. ... L {1,217
Impairment of infangible assets . ... ... ... ... L 20665 352121
Cash payments for stock-based compensation {1.268) {13 (T65)
Share of (camings) losses of affiliate, net ... ... ........ 120,962 127,573 T K
Realized and unrealized {gains) losses on financial instrume {2.619) {51,189 (97 8600)
{Gain) loss on dilution of investment in affiliane . .. 7.198 87,158 02933
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ... ... ......... A (24,064 {66,703 (30,924)
OWEn BEL. ... e {1440 18 39
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Current and otherassets. . ... oo iviiiiiiiiiia e e {1,238) 46 7,729
Payables and other liabilities a0c (442020 (4,501) (2417)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4072 2,728 5475
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expersded for property and equipment .. ... ... ... oo (731) (1.39%) (1,127)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired {43,088)
Proceeds (payments) from issuances and settlements of financial
IMSIMENLS, DL . ... L ot e (59.612)
Inwestments in equity investees . . . (175,857) (2.565,150)
Amounts loaned to formerparent. .. ... ool L. {55,646) (58,344)
Repayments by former parent on loan receivable 0,012 50373
Purchases of short term investments and other marketable securiti (18,032) {9,001

Sales of short term investments and other marketable securities . . . 5 15,019

Other investing activities, net S {1.735) (8) (%)
Net cash used in dnvesting activities ... ... oo {2479y {200.986) (2.624.868)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from rights offering. 697,309
Borrowings of debr. . ........... fAE 67,995 372,000
Repaymentsofdebt . ..............cooiviiivnnnina, s (40,000
Contribution from (distribution to) farmer parent, net (129,184) 2618613
Proceeds from issuances of financial instruments .. ... .. ..o 30,158 130,237 63,547
Payments from settlements of financial instruments (182,192 (130,237) (63,547
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation . ... ..... ac 1,217
Other financing sctivities, net. .. .. ... ... ... ........ - 4,190
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities nac 578.677 242,816 2618613
et increase {decrease)incash ... ... ... o0l L 610,270 35558 (780
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of vear. . ............ soC 44,509 9,251 10031
Cash and cash equivalents, end of vear .. ..., ... 3 655,079 44,804 9251
Supplemental disclosure to the consolidated statements of cash flows:
Years ended December 31,
2015 BN E] 2013
amonnis in thossands
Cash paid for IMEPESL. . ... e e e 5 7.251 1,078
Cushpaid o tanes ... ovo i ven i n st e ] 5485 2,870 16,577

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2015, 2004 and 2013

{1} Basis of Presentation

During May 2014, the board of directors of Liberty Media Corporation and its subsidianes (*Liberty™) authonzed
management (o pursue a plan to spin-off 1o its stockholders common stock of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Liberty Broadband
Corporation (“Liberty Broadband™), and to distribute subscription rights io acquire shares of Liberty Broadband’s commen stock
(the “Broadband Spin-Of). At 5:00 pom., New York City time, on November 4, 2014 the Broadband Spin-Off was completed
and shares of Liberty Broadband common stock were distributed to the shareholders of Liberty as of a record date of 5:00 p.m.,
Mew York City time, on October 29, 2014, Liberty Broadband 15 comprised of, among other things, (1) Libertys former interest
in Charter Communications, Inc. (“Charter”), (11) Liberty’s former wholly-owned subsidiary TruePosition, Inc. (“TruePosition”),
(1i1) Liberty's former minority equity investment in Time Warner Cable, Inc. (*Time Wamer Cable™), (iv) certain deferred tax
liahilities, as well as liabilities related to the Time Wamer Cable written call options and (v) initial indebtedness, pursuant to
margin loans enfered into prior to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Oif. These financial statements refer to the combination
of the aforementioned subsidiary, investments, and financial instruments, as “Liberty Broadband,” “the Company,” “us,” “we”
and “our” m the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The Broadband Spin-Off was accounted for al lnstorical cost due
to the pro rata nature of the distribution to holders of Liberty common stock.

In the Broadband Spin-CHf, record holders of Liberty Series A, Series B and Series C commaon stock received one-fourth
of a share of the corresponding series of Liberty Broadband common stock for each share of Liberly common stock held by them
as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on October 29, 2014 (the record date), with cash paid in lieu of fractional shares. In addition,
following the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, on December 10, 2014, stockholders received a subscniption nghi fo acquire
one share of Series C Liberty Broadband common stock for every five shares of Liberty Broadband common stock they held as
of 5:00 pm., New York City time, on December 4, 2014 (the rights record date). See note 10 for additional information related
to the rights offering.

Following the Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty and Liberty Broadband operate as separate, publicly traded companies, and
neither has any stock ownership, beneficial or otherwise, in the other, In connection with the Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty and
Libenty Broadband entered into certain agreements in order to govern certain of the ongoing relationships between the two
companies afier the Broadband Spin-Off and to provide for an orderly transition. These agreemenis include a reorganization
agreement, a services agreement, a facilities sharing agreement and a tax sharing agreement.

The reorganization agreement provides for, among other things, the principal corporate fransactions (including the
internal restructuring) required fo effect the Broadband Spin-Oif, certain conditions to the Broadband Spin-Off and provisions
governing the relationship between Liberty Broadband and Liberty with respect to and resulting from the Broadband Spin-Off
The fax sharing agreement provides for the allocation and indemmnification of tax habilities and benefits between Liberly and
Liberty Broadband and other agreements related 1o tax matters. Pursuant to the tax sharing agreement, Liberty Broadband has
agreed to indemmnify Liberty, subject to certain limited exceptions, for losses and faxes resulting from the Broadband Spin-Off to
the extent such losses or taxes result primarily from, individually or in the aggregate, the breach of cerfain restrictive covenanis
made by Liberty Broadband {applicable to actions or failures to act by Liberty Broadband and its subsidiaries following the
completion of the Broadband Spin-Off). Pursuant to the services agreement, Liberty provides Liberty Broadband with general
and administrative services meluding legal, tax, accounting, treasury and imvestor relations support. Under the facilities sharing
agreement, Liberly Broadband shares office space with Liberty and related amenities at Liberty s corporate headquariers, Liberty
Broadband will reimburse Liberty for direct, out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Liberty in providing these services which will
be negotiated semi-annually. Under these various agreements, approximately 52,5 million was reimbursable to Liberty for the
year ended December 31, 2015,

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accouniing principles in the United States (“"GAAP”) and represent a combination of the historical financial information of

F-27



LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2004 and 2013

TruePosition, the Company's interest in Chanter, the Company s minority equity investment in Time Wamer Cable and centain
deferred fax liabilities, as well as habilities related to the Time Warner Cable call option. All significant intercompany accounis
and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(2) Description of Business

TruePosition develops and markets fechnology for locating wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular
network, enabling wireless carriers and government agencies to provide public safety E-9-1-1 services domestically and services
in support of commercial applications, national security and law enforcement worldwide.

Since 2012, TruePosition has been largely dependent on one wireless carrier (AT&T), which accounted for
approximately 80% - 90% of TruePosition's overall revenue. During September 20015, AT&T gave notice that it did not intend to
renew its contract, which expired on December 31, 2015, The Company believed that the receipt of the notification represented
a significant change in circumstances since we last performed our annual goodwil] impairment test. Accordingly, we performed
a goodwill impaiment test upon receipt of the notification from TruePosition. At that time, the estimated fair value of the
reporting unit was primarily determined based on the cash and cash equivalents held by the reporting unit, and when compared
fo its carrying value, it was concluded that a goodwill impairment did not exisi. The carrying value of TruePosition mcluded a
£35.5 mullion deferred revenue liability related to the contract with AT&T. Upon expiration of the contract on December 31,
2015, the deferred revenue was recognized, as all contractual obligations were satisfied at that time, The recognition of this
deferred revenue liability increased the reporting umit carryving value, As a result, the Company determined the fair value of
TruePosition. As the reporting unit’s carrving value exceeded the fair value, we performed a Step 2 impairment test and recorded
a 520.7 million impairment loss related to TruePosition’s goodwill during December 2015, See note 7 for additional discussion
regarding this impairment loss.

On February 14, 2014, TrucPosition acquired 100% of the outstanding commaon shares of Skyhook Wireless, Inc,
{“Skyhook™), a Delaware corporation, for approximately $57.5 million in cash, Skyhook is a provider of hybnd wireless
positioning technology and contextual location intelligence, Acquisition related costs of $958 thousand and 3624 thousand are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ending December 31, 2004 and 2013, respectively.
TruePosition used its cash plus a capital contribution of $49.4 million from Liberty during 2014 to fund the acquisition. Upon
the aequisition of Skyhook, TruePosition placed $6.0 million of the cash considerafion info an escrow account for use to setile
any indenmification claims made by TruePosition during the 12 months subsequent to closing the acquisition. There were no
claims made against the escrow account, and the full amount was released to the selling parties duning February 20135, The
purchase price allocation resulted in the following (amounts in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents . . . b3 9442
Goodwill. .. ....cociiiiniiiinivananaas 24931
Amortizable intangible assets. ... _....... 35,598
Oiherassels ... ... .. .o o 1,353
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . . (6,905)
Deferred revenue .. ... iieaiin .. {5.000)
Deferred taxes . .....oovueavivananenans (1.BES)
B 57,330

Amorlizable infangible asseis acquired include patents, tradenames, customer relationships, and capitalized software.
The fair value of these assets was determined using projected cash flows based on Level 3 inputs. The remaining useful life of
patents, iradenames and customer relationships was determined to be five years. The remaming useful life of capitalized software
was determined to be three to five years. Accordingly, the amortizable intangble assets acquired were amortized straight-lme
over these respective periods. In connection with the intangible impairment recorded on Skyhook's intangible assets during the
fourth quarier of 2014 (discussed below), TrucPosifion re-evaluated the remaining useful lives of Skyhook's amortizable
intangible assets. As a result, as of January 1, 2015, TruePosition determined the remaining useful life of Skyvhook's patents to be
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LIBERTY BROADBAND CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2004 and 2013

three and a half years and Skyhook's tradename and customer relationship to be five and a half yvears. On January 1, 2015,
TruePosition began amortizing Skyhook’s infangible assets struight-line prospectively over these revised periods. Capitalized
software intangible assets continue 1o be amortized over three to five vears. Goodwill is caleulated as the excess of the
consideration transferred over the identifiable net assets acquired and represents the fiture economic benefits expected to arise
from other intangible assets acquired that do not gualify for separate recogmiion, mcluding assembled workforee and non-
contrachual relationships.

Assuming the Skyhook iransaction took place on January 1, 2013, the Company’s revenue would have been
approximately $85.9 million, the operating loss would have been $11.7 million and the net loss would have been $48.7 million
on & pro forma basis for the year ended December 31, 2013, The previous amounts were determined using historical results of
Liberty Broadband and Skyhook, mcluding purchase accounting amortization. Such amounis are not indicaive of what actual
amounts might have been had the transaction occurred as of that date.

In mid-Movember 2014, Skyhook was nofified that one of its significant customers was noi expected to renew ifs contract
for 20015, As aresult, approximately 30-40% of Skvhook's revenue was not expected to recur during 2015, Due to this anticipated
decline in Skyhook's operations, the Company defermined the fair value of Skyhook and performed a Step 2 impairment fest,
which resulted in a 8352 million impairment loss recorded to TruePosition’s goodwill and intangible assets related to Skyvhook
dunng December 2014, See note 7 for additional discussion regarding this impairment loss.

Charfer is a cable operator that provides services in the United States. Charer offers to residential and commercial
customers traditional cable video programming, [nlernet services, and voice services, as well as advanced video services such as
Charter OnDemand™, high definition television, and digital video recorder (“DVR") service. Charter sells ils cable video
programming, Internet, voice, and advanced video services primarily on a subscription basis. Charter also sells local advertising
on cable networks and on the Intemet and provides fiber connectivity 1o cellular towers and office buildings. Liberty acquired its
interest in Charter on May 1, 2013, At December 31, 2015, Liberty Broadband owned approximately 28,8 million shares of
Charter common stock, which represents an approximate 26% ownership interest in Charter’s issued and outstanding shares as
of December 31, 2015, Under Liberty s stockholders agreement with Charter, Liberty had the right to nominate four direciors io
the Charter board of directors, subject 1o certain exclusions and requirements. Liberty also had the right to cause one of its
nominees to serve on the nominating and corporate governance, audit and compensation and benefits committees of the board,
provided they meet the independence and other qualifications for membership on those committees, These nights were transferred
to Liberty Broadband m connection with the Broadband Spin-Off. In connection with the proposed Bright House Transaction
and Time Wamer Cable Merger (each as defined m note 6), on May 23, 2015, we entered into an Amended and Restated
Stockholders Agreement (the “Second Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement™) with Charter, New Charter and
Advance/Newhouse Partnership {“A/N™), which coniinues to provide us with board nomination rights, among other rights.

Also included in Liberty Broadband is an investment in outstanding shares of Time Warner Cable, which is classified
as available-for-sale and is carried at fair value based on quoted market prices. Additionally, the Company historically had written
call options and a cashless collar agreement on Time Wamner Cable shares, See note 5 for mformation regarding the Company's
investment in Time Wamer Cable. See note 4 for information regarding the Time Wamer Cable written call options and cashless
collar agreement.

(3) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Casht and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of cash deposits held in global financial institutions. Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments
with maturities of three months or less at the time of acquisition, Cash that has restrictions upon its usage has been excluded from

cash and cash equivalents, Resincied cash compnises bank deposils securing a line of eredit (note 8). Restricted cash was $32
thousand and $4.0 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.



LIBERTY BROADBAND CORFORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2004 and 2013
Aecounts Receivable and Allowance for Dowbiful Acconnts

Accounis receivable are recorded ai the invoiced amount and reduced by an allowance for doubiful accounts. For
accounts outstanding longer than the contractual payment terms, the Company determines an allowance by considering a number
of factors, including the length of time trade accounts receivable are past due, previous loss history, a specific customer's ability
to pay itz obligations to us, and current economic conditions,

Derivative Tustroments and Hedging Activities

All of the Company’s derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and of the hedged
item aftnibutable to the hedged risk are recogmized in eamings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective
portions of changes in the fair value of the denvative are recorded in other comprehensive eamings and are recognized in the
statement of operations when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow
hedges are recognized in earnings, [f the derivative is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are
recognized in earnings. None of the Company’s derivatives are currently designated as hedges.

The fair value of certain of the Company’s derivative nstruments are estimated using the Black Scholes Merton oplion-
pricing model (“Black-Scholes model”). The Black-Scholes model mcorporates a number of variables in determiming such fair
values, including expected volatility of the underlying security and an appropriate discount rate. The Company obtained volatility
raies from pricing services based on the expected volatility of the underlying security over the remaining term of the derivative
instrument. A discount rate was obtained at the inception of the derivative instrument and updated each reporting period, based
on the Company’s estimate of the discount rate ai which it could currently seiile the dervative mstrument. The Company
considered its own credit risk as well as the credit risk of its counterparties in estimating the discount rate, Management judgment
wis required in estimating the Black-Scholes varighles. See note 4 for further discussion of fair value of the Company’s derivative
mstruments,

Property and Eguipmeit

Propery and equipment consisis of the following {amounts in thousands):

Deegmber 31,
20

15 2014
SUppPOrt SQUIPITIEIT. . . . ot v e e e e e e e & 21,764 34,526
Computer equipment. . ...... 000 2,257 3,382
Furniture & FXDIPES. . . . ..o i cieia i iias it ci e i ia i 2,025 2006
26,051 39914
Accurnulated depreciation. ... ... ..o i i i i s i i e (24.803) (36324

§ 1,248 3,590
Property and equipment is recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is three yvears for computer equipment and five years for
support equipment and fumifure and fixtures,

Tnvestments

All marketable debt and equity securities held by the Company are classified as available-for-sale (“AFS") and are
carried at fair value penerally based on quoted market prices. Fair values are determined for each individual security in the
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investment ponfolio. Unrealized pains and losses, net of taxes, arising from changes in fair value are reported in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) as a componeni of shareholders” equity.

GAAP permits entities to choose 10 measure many financial instruments, such as AFS secunties, and certain other items
at fair value and to recognize the changes in fair value of such instruments in the entity's statements of operations (the *Fair Value
Option™). Liberty Broadband has elected the fair value option for those of its AFS securities which it considers to be non-strategic
{“Fair Value Option Securities”). Accordingly, changes in the fair value of Fair Value Option Securities, as determined by quoted
market prices, are reporied in realized and unrealized gain (losses) on financial instruments in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. The total value of AFS securities for which the Company has elected the fair value option aggregated
$438.9 million and $359.6 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

The Company continually reviews its AFS securities not designated as Fair Valoe Option Securities 1o determine whether
a decline in fair value below the camrying value is other than temporary. The primary factors considered in this determination are
the length of time that the fair value of the investment is below the camying value, the severity of the decline, and the financial
condition, operating performance and near term prospects of the investee. [n addition, the Company considers the reason for the
decline in fuir value, be i general market conditions, industry specific or investee specific: analysis” rafings and estimates of
12 month share price targets for the mvestee; changes in stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance sheet date; and the
Company's intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of ime sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value. If the
decling in fair value 15 deemed to be other than temporary, the camrying value of the security is writien down to fair value, In
situations where the fair value of an investment is not evident due to a lack of public market price or other factors, the Company
uses ifs best estimates and assumpiions to armve af the estimated fair value of such investments. The Company's assessment of
the foregoing factors involves considerable management judgment and accordingly, actual results may differ matenally from the
Company's estimates and judgments. Writedowns of AFS securities would be included in the consolidated statements of
operations as other than temporary declines in fair values of investments, There were no impairment charges recorded during
2015, 2014 or 2013,

For those investments in affiliates in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence, the equity
method of accounting is used. Under this method, the investment, originally recorded at cost, is adjusted to recognize the
Company’'s share of net eamings or losses of the affiliale as they occur rather than as dividends or other distributions are received.
Losses are limited to the extent of the Company’s investment i, advances to and commitments for the investee. The Company
determines the difference between the purchase price of the investee and the underlying equity which results in an excess basis
in the investment, This excess basis is allocated to the underlying assets and labilities of the Company’s investee through a
purchase accounting exercise and is allocated within memo accounts used for equity accounting purposes. Depending on the
applicable underlying assets, these amounts are either amortized over the applicable useful lives or determined to be indefinite
lived. We periodically evaluate our equity method investment to determine if decreases in fair value below our cost basis are
other than femporary. I a decline m fair value is determined to be other than temporary, we are required to reflect such decline
in our consolidated statement of operations, Other than temporary declines m fair value of our equity method mvestment would
be included in share of camings (losses) of affiliate in our consolidated statement of operations. Changes in the Company’s
proporiionaic share of the underlying equity of an equity method invesiee, which result from the issuance of additional equity
securities by such equity investee, are recognized in the staterment of operations through the gain (lossh on dilution of investment
in affiliate line item.

As Liberty Broadband does not control the decision making process or business management practices of our affiliate
aceounted for using the equity method, Liberty Broadband relies on management of its affiliate to provide it with accurate
financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP that the Company uses i the application of the equity method., In
addition, Liberty Broadband relies on the audit reports that are provided by the affiliate’s independent auditors on the financial
stafements of such aifiliates. The Company i1s noi aware, however, of any errors in or possible misstatemenis of the financial
information provided by its equity affiliate that would have a material effect on Liberty Broadband's consolidated financial
slalemenis.
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Leases

The Company, through its consolidated entities, leases facilities and cerfain equipment under cancelable and non-
cancelable lease agreements. The terms of some of the lease agreements provide for rental payments on a graduated basis. Rent
expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease period and accrued as rent expense incurred but not paid, The lease
term begins on the date we become legally obligated for the reni payments or when we take possession of the office space,
whichever is earlier.

Goodwill and Oiher Intangible Assets

The Company performs at least annually an assessment of the recoverability of goodwill and other indefinite-lived
infangible assets during the fourth quarier of each year. The Company uiilizes a qualitative assessment for determining whether
the quantitative impairment analysis is necessary. The accounting guidance permits entities to first assess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its camrying amount as a basis for
determining whether it is necessary to perfiorm the two-step impairment test, In evaluating goodwill on a qualitative basis, the
Comipany reviews the business performance of each reporting wnit and evaluates other relevant factors as identified in the relevam
accouniing guidance o defermine whether it was more likely than not that an indicated impairmeni exists for any of our reporting
units, The Company considers whether there are any negative macroeconomic conditions, industry specific conditions, market
changes, increased competition, increased costs i doing business, management challenges, the legal environments and how these
factors might impact company-specific performance i future periods,

If a step one test is considered necessary for goodwill impairment testing based on the qualitative factors, the Company
compares the estimated fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value. Developing estimates of fair value requires significant
Judgments, mcluding making assumptions about appropriate discount rates, perpetual growth rates, relevant comparable market
multiples, public trading prices and the amount and timing of expected future cash flows, The cash flows employed in the
Company’s valuation analysis are based on management’s best estimates considering current markeiplace factors and risks as
well as assumptions of growth rates in future years. There is no assurance that actual results in the future will approximate these
forecasts. For those reporting units whose carrving value exceeds the fair value, 8 second test is required o measure the
impairment loss (the “Step 2 Test™). In the Step 2 Test, the fair value (Level 3) of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the
identifiable asseis and liabilities of the reporting unit with any residual value being allocated v goodwill. Any excess of the
carrying value of the goodwill over this allocated amount is recorded as an impairment charge.

The accounting guidance also permits entities to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more
likely than not that an mdefinite-lived mtangible asset is impaired. If the qualitative assessment supports that it 15 more likely
than not that the carrving valee of the Company’s indefinite-lived intangible assets, other than goodwill, exceeds its fair value,
then a quantitative assessment is performed. If the carrying value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss 15 recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

See note 2 and note 7 for additional discussion regarding goodwill impairment losses recorded during the wears ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014,

Tnternal Use Software Development Cosis

Cerain costs incurred during the application development stage related fo the development of intermal use software are
capitalized and included in other intangible assets. Capitalized costs include internal and external costs, if direct and incremental,
and deemed by management to be significant. Costs related to the planning and post implementation phases of software
development are expensed as these costs are incurred. Maintenance and enhancement costs (including those costs in the post-
implementation stages) are typically expensed as incurred, unless such costs relate to substantial upgrades and enhancements to
the website or software resulting in added functionality, in which case the costs are capitalized.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Intangible assets with definite lives and other long-lived assets are carried at cost and are amortized on a straight-line
basis over ther estimated useful lives of three to five and a half years. The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of
long-lived assets or asset groups, ncluding propenty and equipment, to be used in operafions whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carryving amount of the assets or asset groups might not be recoverable,

Factors that would necessitate an impairment assessment include a significant adverse change in the extent or manner
in which an asset is used, a significant adverse change in legal factors or the business climate that could affect the value of the
asset group, or a significant decling in the observable market value of an asset group, among others, [f such facts indicate a
poteniial impairment, the recoverability of the asset group is assessed by determining whether the carrving value of the asset
group exceeds the sum of the projected undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the
asset group over the remaining economic life of the asset group, If the carrving amount of the asset group is greater than the
expecied undiscounied cash flows to be generated by such asset group, meluding its vliimate disposition, an mparment
adjustment is o be recognized. Such adjustment is measured by the amount that the carrying value of such asset groups exceeds
their fair value. The Company generally measures fair value by considering sale prices for similar assets or by discounting
estimated future cash flows using an appropriate discount rate. Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate the
fair value of asset groups. Accordingly, actual results could vary significantly from such estimates. Asset groups to be disposed
of are camied at the lower of their financial statement carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, The Company recorded a
£16.8 million impairment loss of its intangible assets with definite lives during the vear ended December 31, 2014 due to an
anticipated decline in Skyhook’s operations as a resuli of the loss of one of Skyhook’s significant customers, as discussed in note
2. There was no indication of impairment of long-lived assets during the yvears ended December 31, 2015 or 2013,

lation and Tran i Crains and Losses

Foreign Currency Tr

The functional currency of the Company is the United States (*U.5.”) dollar. Transactions denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency are recorded based on exchange rates at the time such transactions arise, Subsequent changes
in exchange rales result in transaction gains and losses which are reflected mn the accompanying consolidated statemenis of
operations and comprehensive earnings (loss) as unrealized (based on the applicable period end exchange rate) or realized upon
sefilement of the transactions.

Revenne Recognition

TruePosition earns revenue from the sale of hardware and licensing of software required to generate location records for
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network and from the design, mstallation, testing, and commissioning of
such hardware and software. In addition, TruePosition eams software maintenance revenue through the provision of ongoing
technical and sofiware suppor.

TruePosition's tangible products contain software components and non-software components that function together to
deliver the tangible products” essential functionality, Under the applicable accounting guidance, arrangements for such products
are excluded from the scope of software revenue recognition guidance and are subject to the guidance for multiple-element
amrangements, Accordingly, for multiple-clement arrangements entered into or materially modified on or after Jameary 1, 2011,
the overall arrangement fee is allocated to each element (both delivered and undelivered items) based on their relative selling
prices, regardless of whether those selling prices are evidenced by vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE™) or third-party
evidence of selling price or are based on the entity s estimated selling price. The associated revenue for each element is recognized
upon delivery assuming all other criteria for revenue recognition are met

For armangements which do not qualify for treatment under the new guidance, TruePosition confinues 1o account for
such arrangements consistent with the guidance for software revenue recognition. Under those policies, for revenue denved from
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multiple-element arrangements, if VSOE exists for each of the elements of the arrangement at the outset, the Company allocates
the revenue o the various elemenis for recognition upon delivery of each element. If not, the revenue is deferred until the earlier
of establishing sufficient VSOE for allocating revenue for recognition or delivery of all of the elements. If a multiple-element
arangement includes post-contract customer support (commonly referred to as mamtenance), VSOE must exist for the
maintenance in order to allocate revenue to all of the elements of the arrangement. If VSOE does not exist for the mamtenance,
revenue for the entire arrangement is recognized ratably over the contractual or expected term of the maintenance arrangement.

Direct costs related fo muliiple-element arrangemenis are deferred and recognized as the related revenue is recognized.
Direct costs mclude installation services, hardware, and software costs.

TruePosition's muliiple-element arrangement with s significant customer also contemplates usage-based transaction
fees for certain commercial uses of TruePositions hardware and software.

TruePosition also provides training, technical, and repair services under its multiple-element arrangements. Revenue is
recognized upon delivery of the services,

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued new accounting guidance on revenue from
contracts with customers. The new guidance requires an enfity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects (o be
entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The updated guidance wall replace most existing revenue
recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes effective and permits the use of either a retrospective or cumulative effiect
transifion method, This guidance is effective for fiscal years, and iterim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the new standard may have on ils revenue recognition
and has not vel selected a transition method but does not believe the standard will significantly affect its Ainancial statements and
related disclosures,

Research and Develapment Costs
Research and development costs are expensed as incurmed,
Deferred Revenie and Deferved Costs

Deferred revenue represenis billings in excess of revenue previously recognized. Deferred cosis represent direct cosis
related to installation services, hardware, and software, which, to the extent nol previously recognized, are recognized as the
related revenue is recognized. As of December 31, 2014, the long-term portion of deferred revenue meluded $35.5 million of
payments received from TruePosition’s largest customer, which were attributed to prepaid transaction fees, As discussed in note
2, TruePosition recognized this deferred revenue during December 2015, in connection with the expiration of this customer's
confract.

Stock -Based Compensation

As more fully described in note 11, Liberty Broadband has granted to iis directors, employees and employees of ceriain
of its subsidiaries options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights (“SARs") to purchase shares of Libenty Broadband
common stock (collectively, “Awards™). Liberty Broadband measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for an
Award of equity instruments (such as stock options and restricted stock) based on the grant-date fair value of the Award, and
recognizes that cost over the period during which the employee is required to provide service (usually the vesting period of the
Award). Libenty Broadband measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for an Award of liability instruments
(such as stock appreciation rights that will be setiled in cash) based on the current fair value of the Award, and remeasures the
fair value of the Award at each reporting date. Certain outstanding awards of Liberty were assumed by Liberty Broadband at the
time of the Broadband Spin-Oiff,
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Additionally, TruePosition and Skvhook each sponsor a long-term incentive plan (“LTIP™) which provide for the
gronting of phantom stock umits (“PSUs™), and phantom stock appreciation rights (“PARs”) 1o employees, direciors, and
consultants of TruePosition and Skyhook, respectively. TruePosition also sponsors a Stock Incentive Plan (“SIP7), which provides
for the granting of stock options to employees, directors, and consultants of TruePosition. TruePosition measures the cost of
employee services received i exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award and
recognizes that cost ratably over the period during which the emplovee is required to provide service (usually the vesting period
of the award). TruePosition measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of liability instruments (such
as PSUs and PARSs that will be settled in cash) based on the current fair value of the award, and remeasures the fair value of the
award at each reporting date. The consolidated statements of operations includes stock-based compensation related to
TruePosition awards,

Included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations are the following amounts of stock-based
compensation for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2015 2014 013

Operating expense. . . ... e e 5 7 1 2

Selling, general and administrative . ......ooevinennnian 54978 832 751

Researchand development. . ... ..o iiiiiiiiiiiaiiinns 395 166 243

$ 6,380 999 906

Income Taves

The Company accounts for imcome taxes using the assel and liability method, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable 1o differences between the financial statement carrying value amounts
and mgome tax bases of assels and liabilities and the expected benefits of ulilizing net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards,
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated wsing enacted tax rates in effect for each taxing jurisdiction in which the
Company operates for the yvear in which those temporary differences are expected o be recovered or sefiled. Net deferred tax
assets are then reduced by a valuation allowance if the Company believes it more likely than not that such net deferred tax assets
will not be realized. We consider all relevant factors when assessing the likelihood of fiture realization of our deferred tax assets,
including our recent earnings experience by junisdiction, expectations of future taxable income, and the camyforward periods
available to us for tax reporting purposes, as well as assessing available tax planning strategies. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of an enacied change in fax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Due to
inherent complexities ansing from the nature of our businesses, future changes in income tax law, tax sharing agreements or
vanances between our actual and anticipated operating resulis, we make certain judgments and estimates. Therefore, actual
income taxes could materially vary from these estimates,

In November 2015, the FASB issued new accounting guidance that eliminates the current requirement for organizations
o present deferred fax asseis and liabilities as current and noncurrent in a classified balance sheet. Under the new guidance,
organizations will be required to classify all deferred tax assets and liabilities as noncurrent. The new guidance may be applied
prospectively to all deferred tax liabilities and assets or retrospectively to all periods presented. This guidance is effective for
fiscal years, and mtenim periods within those fiscal years, beginming after December 15, 2016, Early adoption s permitied. The
Company elected to early adopt this guidance retrospectively during the current period. Accordingly, all deferred tax assets and
liahilities are presented as noncurrent in the financial statements for all periods presented. The adoption of the new guidance
resulted in the reclassification of £11.3 million deferred income tax assets previously reported as current deferred income tax
assets fo be reclassified to noncurrent deferred income fax assels as of December 31, 2014,

When the tax law requires interest to be paid on an underpayment of income taxes, the Company recognizes inferest

expense from the first penod the interest would begin accruing according to the relevant tax law, Such inferest expense is included
in inferest expense in the aceompanying consolidated statements of operations. Any accrual of penalties related to underpayment
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of income taxes on uncefain tax positions is included in other ncome {(expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.,

W recognize in our consolidated financial statements the impact of a tax position, if that position is more likely than
not to be sustained upon an examination, based on the technical merits of the position,

Certain Risks and Concentrafions

The TruePosition business is subject to certain risks and concentrations including dependence on relationships with its
customers, TruePosition has one significant customer whose contract expired on December 31, 2015, The loss of this cusiomer
is expected to have a material adverse effect on TruePosition’s business unless TruePosition is able to generate significant new
business to replace the financial impact of this customer. For the years ended December 31, 2015, 20014 and 2013, his cusiomer
accounted for 85%, 83% and 85%, respectively, of TruePosition's total revenue, As discussed in note 7, we recorded an
impairment loss dunng December 2005 due to the expected decline m TruePosition’s operations from the loss of this customer,

Confingend Liabiliiies

Periodically, we review the status of all significant cutstanding matlers to assess any potential financial exposure. When
(1) it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and (1) the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated, we record the estimated loss in our consolidated statements of operations. We provide disclosure in the notes 1o the
consolidated financial statements for loss contingencies that do not meet both these conditions if there is a reasonable possibility that
a loss may have been incurred that would be material to the financial statements. Significant judgment is required to determine the
probability that a liability has been incurred and whether such Lability is reasonably estimable. We base accruals made on the best
information available at the time which can be highly subjective. The final outcome of these matiers could vary significantly from
the amounts included m the accompanying consolidated financial statements,

Comprehensive Earnings (Loss)

Comprehensive eamings (loss) consists of net income (loss), cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments,
unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, net of tax and the Company’s share of the comprehensive camings
{loss) of our equity method affiliate.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic eamings (loss) per common share (“EPS”™) 15 computed by dividing net eamings (loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the peniod. Diluted EPS presents the dilutive effect on a per share basis of potential
common shares as if they had been converted at the beginning of the periods presented.

The Company 1ssued 85,761,332 common shares, which is the aggregate number of shares of Series A, Series B and
Series C common stock outstanding upon the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off on November 4, 2014, Additionally, as part
of the recapitalization, Liberty Broadband distributed subscription rights, which were priced at a discount to the market value, o
all holders of Liberty Broadband common stock (see further discussion innote 10). The rights offering, because of the discount,
15 considered a stock dividend which requires refroactive treaiment for prior periods for the weighted average shares outstanding
based on a factor applied determined by the fair value per share immediately prior to the rights exercise and the theoretical fair
value afier the rights exercise. The number of shares issued upon completion of the Broadband Spin-Oif, adjusted for the rights
factor, was used o determine both basic and diluted EPS for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period from January
1, 2014 through the date of the Broadband Spin-Off, as no Company equity awards were outstanding prior 1o the Broadband
Spin-Off. Basic EPS subsequent to the Broadband Spin-Off was computed using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding (“WASO™), adjusted for the rights factor, from the date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off through January
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9, 2015, the date on which the rights offering was fully subscribed. Basic EPS subsequent to January 9, 2015 was computed using
WASO. Diluted EPS subsequent (o the Broadband Spin-Off was computed using the WASO from the date of the completion of
the Broadband Spin-Off through Tanuary 9, 2015, adjusted for the nghts factor and potentially dilutive equity awards outstanding
during the same period. Subsequent to January 9, 2015, basic EPS was computed using the WASO during the period, and diluted
EPS was computed using the WASO adjusted for potentially dilutive equity awards outstanding during the period.

Years ended December 31,
2015 2004 ElE
namber of shares in thomsnds
BasicWASD .. ... 102,504 B8, 143 BE.343
Potentially dilutive shares. .. 494 630 —
Diluted WASO. ....ooviivie e i innnas 102,998 88,773 #8343

Excluded from diluted EPS for the year ended December 31, 2005 are approximately 3 thousand potential common
shares because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive,

Reclasses and adjnsiments
Centain prior period amounts have been reclassified for comparability with the current year presentation.
Estimares

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses duning the reporing period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, The Company
considers (i) application of the equity method of accounting for its affiliates, (ii) fair value of non-financial instraments, (iii) fair
value of financial instruments, (1v) revenue recognition, and (v) accounting for income taxes (o be its most significant estimates,

{4) Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

For assets and liabilities required 1o be reported at fair value, GAAP provides a hierarchy that prionitizes inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted market prices in active markets
for wlentical assets or habilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access al the measurement date, Level 2 mpuls are
inpuits, other than quoted market prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirecily. Level 3 inpuis are unobservable inpuls for the asset or liability. The Company does noi have any recurring asseis or
liabilities measured at fair value that would be considered Level 3.
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The Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value are as follows:

December 31, 2015 Drecember 31, 2004
Qmated prices Significant Quated prices Significant
i active allier in active ollwer
markets for ahservahle markeds for shservahle
identical assels impais identical assels inputs
Deseription  ~~~ _ Towal = (Levald) =~ _(Loveld) _ Total = _ (Levell) = _(Levald)
amunts in thousands
Cash equivalents.......... 5 639,956 639,956 36,002 36,002
Short-term marketable
securities .. .. ......... 5 w0i4 9,014 - 9,001 4,001 —
Available-for-sale securities. $ 439,560 439,560 — 360,762 360,762 -
Time Warner Cable financial
msiroments (1025 .. .. ... 5 — — — {75,3560) — {75,356)

(1) As of December 31, 2014, the Company had an outstanding written call option on 625,000 Time Wamer Cable shares
with a strike price of $92.02 per share which expired in February 2015, Upon expiration, this written call option was
rolled into a new written call option on 623,000 Time Warner Cable shares with a strike price of $100.39 per share
which the Company cash setiled during June 2015 for 248.3 million. Additionally, as of December 31, 2014, the
Company had another outstanding written call option on 625,000 Time Warner Cable shares with a strike price of $90.84
peer share which the Company cash setfled during April 2005 for $36.7 million. No written call options on Time Wamer
Cable shares are ouistanding as of December 31, 2015,

(2) On March 27, 2015, Liberty Broadband entered into a cashless collar agreement with a financial nstitution on 1.7
million Time Wamner Cable shares held by the Company with a put option strike price of $136.80 per share and a call
opiion strike price of $161.62 per share. The collar was originally scheduled to expire during March 2017, The Company
uirwound the agreement during July 2015 for $67.1 million cash paid to the counterparty. In connection with this collar
agreement, the Company also entered into a revolving loan agreement with an availability of 5234 million, which was
terminated upon unwinding of the collar agreement during July 2015 (note 8).

The fair value of Level 2 derivative liabilities were derived from a Black-Scholes model using observable market data
as the significant inputs. The inputs used in the model during the period owstanding (exclusive of the applicable trading price of
Time Warner Cable stock and the strike prices associated with the call options) were as follows:

_ Range S
Molatility. ... 11.7% — 291%
[ E e o 1 023%  — 0.99%
Dividemd yield. .. ... 0% — L71%

Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments not measured at fair value on a recurring basis melude trade receivables, irade payables,
accrued and other current liabilities. The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short matunty of these instruments
as reporied on our consolidated balance sheets,
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Realized end Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Financial Istruments

Realized and unrealized gamns (losses) on financinl instrumenis are comprised of changes in the fair value of the
following:

Years ended December 31,
015 2oid 23

(amoanis in thomsands)
Charter warrants (15 .. .o oe e e § NA 32,782 18,234
Time Wamer Cable investment and financial instruments, 2619 18,407 59,626
5 1619 51,189 497,860

(1) As discussed in note 6, Liberty Broadband exercised all of the Company's outstanding warranis to purchase
shares of Charter common stock during November 2014, subsequent to the completion of the Broadband Spin-
Off.

{5) Investments in Available-for-Sale Securitics

All marketable equity and debi securifies held by the Company are classified as available-for-sale (“AFS") and are
carried at fair value generally based on quoted market prices. GAAP permils enfities to choose to measure many financial
instruments, such as AFS secunties, and certain other ilems at farr value and to recogmze the changes in fair value of such
instruments in the entity’s statements of operations, The Company has elected to account for those of its AFS securities which it
considers to be nonstrategic (“Fair Value Option Securities™) at fair value. Accordingly, changes in the fair value of Fair Value
Option Securities, as determined by quoted market prices, are reporied in realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial
instruments in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Investments in AFS securities, including our interest in Time Wamer Cable which 15 our only Fair Value Option Security,
are summarized as follows:

Deeember 31, December 31,
1015 1014
amounts in thewsands
Time Warner Cable_ . ... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... b 438912 159,615
Other equity SECUTITIES . .o ov v v ves s rncnn e 48 1,147
Total Investmenis in available-for-sale securities . . 5 439,560 160,762

Unrealized Holding Gains and Losies

As of December 31, 2005 and 2014, the gross unrealized holding gains related o investment in AFS securities were
£357 thousand and £820 thousand, respectively. There were no gross unrealized holding losses related to investment in AFS
securities for the periods presented.

F-39



LIBERTY BROADBAND CORFORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2015, 2004 and 2013
(6) Investments in Affiliates Accounted for Using the Equity Method

In May 2013, Liberty completed a iransaction with investment funds managed by, or affiliated with, Apollo
Management, Oaktree Capital Management and Crestview Pariners 1o acquire approximately 26.9 million shares of common
stock and approximately 1.1 million warrants in Charter for approximately $2.6 billion, which represented an approximate 27%
beneficial ownership (incleding the warrants on an as if converted basis) i Charter af the time of purchase and a price per share
of $95.50. Liberty funded the purchase with a combination of cash of approximately £1.2 billion on hand and new margin loan
arrangements on approximately 20,3 million Charter common shares, approximately 720 million SIRIUS XM common shares,
approzimately 8.1 million Live Nation common shares and a portion of Liberty’s available for sale securities, mcluding shares
of Time Wamner Cable, The margin loan secured by the Charter and Time Wamer Cable shares was repaid and the collateral was
released prior o completion of the Broadband Spm-Cif. Liberty allocated the purchase price between the shares of common
siock and the warrants acquired in the transaction by determining the fair value of the publicly traded warrants and allocating the
remaining balance to the shares acquired, which resulied in an excess basis in the mvestment of $2,532.3 million, The investment
in Charter is accounted for as an equity method affiliate based on the ownership interest oained and the board seats held by
individuals appointed by Liberty.

During May 2014, Liberty purchased 897 thousand Charter shares for approximately $124.5 million. During November
2014, subsequent to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty Broadband borrowed $32 million to fund the exercise of
all of the Company’s outstanding Charter warrants (see note 8). The exercise of the Charter warrants resulted in a non-cash

investing addition of $130.6 million to the investments in affiliates, accounted for using the equity method line item and a $130.6
million non-cash investing reduction to the derivative instramenis line item within the consolidaied balance sheeis.

Charter Communications, Inc.
Summarized financial information for Charter is as follows:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, December 31,
s 2014
amounts in millions

PRI BESEIE . ... cvvsine s minn i ns me e ks s s 5 345 343
Property and equipment, net . £ G am mr e e e g #.345 8,373
Ly T Sy PPy 1,168 1,168
Infangible assets. . .. ... 6,862 7,111
L T o L 22 596 7,391
b T e e A P P e e P P s 39316 24 388
Current labilities ... ... .. e, 5 1,972 1,635
Deferred Moome BNeS . .. ..o vve v ie s iia i 1,590 1,648
Long-term debt. .. ... R . 35,723 20,887
Other liabilities., ........... s 77 T2
EQUITY vt {46) 146
Total liabilities and equity 4 19316 4 388
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Wears ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
amomnts in millions
REVEIILE L. oottt e et et e e e et e et ananenns b3 9,754 9,108 B,155
Cost and expenses:
Operating costs and expenses {(excluding depreciation and
T T T T A 6,426 5973 5,345
Depreciation and amorization. ... ... ... ... . oL 2,125 2,102 1,854
Other operaling expenses, NEl . ... ..o ie i ainanenes B 62 47
£, () 8,137 7,246
Operating ICOME . ..o uveesieiirsnersnersoransrsnsnanans 1,114 971 Q0
Interest expense s 50 {1,306) {911) {846)
Loss on extinguishment of debt .. ... oo {128) (123)
Orther income (expense), nel. . ... ... oo {11} (] 11
Income tax (expense) benefit . ... 6o i) (236) (120)
MNetearnings (J0S8). .. ... e 5 (271 (183) (169)

As of December 21, 2015, the carrving value of Liberty Broadband's ownership in Chanter was approximately
£2,373 million. The markei value of Libeny Broadband's ownership in Charier as of December 31, 2015 was approximaiely
£5,280 million, which represented an approximate ownership of 2695 of the outstanding equity of Charter as of that date.

During the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, there were 57.2 million, $87.2 million and $92.9 million

of dilution losses, respectively, in the Company’s investment in Charter due to warrant and stock oplion exercises by third parties
below Liberty Broadband's book basis per share.

During the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded $1.3 million, $3.2 million and
£3.7 million, respectively, of its share of Charter's other comprehensive earnings, net of income taxes, Charter records gains and
losses related o the fair valee of its interest rate swap agreements which qualify as hedging activities in other comprehensive
income. The pre-tax portion of Liberty Broadband’s share of Charter’s other comprehensive eamings was £2.1 million, $5.2
million and $6.0 million for the vears ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Due o the amortization of amortizable assets acquired and losses due to warrant and stock oplion exercises al Charter
{as previously discussed), the excess basis has decreased to §2,384.6 million as of December 31, 2015, Such ameount has been
allocated within memo accounts used for equity method accounting purposes as follows (amounits in millions):

Property and equipment .. ... ... s H 3547
Customer relationships . .. ... ... ... .. . e ShbLG
Franchise fees 1,451.4
............... 36.2

935.0
(126.1)

Dreferred income tax [iabil 8332
b 13846

Upon acquisition, the Company ascribed remaining useful lives of 7 years and 13 years to property and equipment and
customer relationships, respectively, and indefinite lives to franchise fees, trademarks and goodwill. Outstanding debt 1s
amortized over the contractual period using the effective imerest rate method. Included in our share of losses from Charter of,
51200 million, $127.6 million and $76.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2004 and 2013, respectively, are 351.6
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million, $81.2 million and $44.3 million, respectively, of losses, net of taxes, due to the amortization of the excess basis of our
investment in Charler related to debi and iniangible assets with identifiable useful lives. The excess basis amortization during the
year ended December 31, 2015 was offset by the write-off of the excess basis related 1o debt instruments which Charter repaid
during the second quarter of 2015 prior to their contractual maturity,

On March 31, 2015, Liberty Broadband announced ifs entry into a new stockholders agreement with Charfer, a
subsidiary of Chanter (“New Chanter™) and AdvanceNewhouse Partmership (“A/N") (the “Bright House Stockholders
Agreement”), which would have replaced the Company’s existing stockholders agreement with Charter, as amended Seplember
29, 2014, Liberty Broadband's eniry into the Bnight House Stockholders Agreement came as the result of Charter s announcement
of a proposed transaction with AN, pursuant to which New Charter would acquire Bright House Networks (“Bright House™)
from A/N for $10.4 billion (the “Bright House Transaction™). The closing of the Bright House Transaction was subject 1o several
conditions, including Charter's receipt of stockholder approval, the expiration of Time Wamer Cable’s nght of first offer for
Bright House, the closing of a binding definitive agreement between Charter and Comeast Corporation (the *“Comcast
Tramsactions Agreement”) and regulatory approval.

As announced by Charier on April 24, 2015, the Comecast Transactions Agreement was ferminated by Comcast
Corporation. As the closing of the Comcast Transactions Agreement had been a condition to the Bright House Transaction, the
parties to the Bright House Stockholders Agreement were to consider, and negotiate for a period of 30 days in good faith,
amendments to the terms of the Bright House Stockholders Agreement that would be desirable to consummate the Bright House
Transaction.

On May 26, 2015, Liberty Broadband announced its entry info an agreement with Charter to mvest $4.3 ballion at a price
of §176.95 per share (adjusted by the applicable exchange rates in the Time Warner Cable Merger) in connection with {and
contingent upon) the closing of the proposed merger of Time Warner Cable and Charter (the “Time Warner Cable Merger™),
which was also announced on May 26, 2015, Additionally, Liberty Broadband agreed to purchase an addional $700 million at
a price of $173.00 per share (adjusted by the applicable exchange rates in the Time Warner Cable Merger) in connection with
Charter’s proposed acquisition of Bright House from A/N, which is generally conditioned on the closing of the Time Warner
Cable Merger. In connection with these transactions, it is expected that Charter will undergo a corporate reorganization, resulting
in New Charier, a curreni subsidiary of Charter, becoming the new publicly traded parent company.

As discussed previously, in support of the Time Warmner Cable Merger, Libenty Broadband will purchase shares of stock
in New Charter (the “Charter Shares™) using proceeds of $4.4 billion related to subscnptions for newly issued shares of Liberty
Broadband’s Series C common stock (the “Series C Shares™), a a price per share of $56,23, which was determined based upon
the fair value of Liberty Broadband’s net assets on a sum-of-the parts basis at the time the investment agreements were executed,
The purchasers of the Series C Shares are Liberty Inferactive through its Liberty Ventures Group and centain third pany investors,
which will all invest on substantially similar terms. One of the third party investors also holds a position in Time Warmer Cable
and has agreed to vote its Time Warner Cable shares in favor of the Time Wamer Cable Merger. The Series C Share subscriptions
are subject to customary closing conditions and funding will only oceur in comnection with the completion of the Time Wamer
Cable Merger. Each of Chanter and Liberty Broadband obtained stockholder approval during September 2015 for the issuance of
the Charter Shares and the Series C Shares, respectively, in accordance with the rules and requiremenis of the Nasdag Stock
Market. Liberty Broadband has the right, and may determine, to incur debt financing (subject to certain conditions) to fund a
portion of the purchase price for its investment in New Charter, i which case Liberty Broadband may reduce the aggregate
subscription for Series C Shares by up to 25%, with such reduction applied pro rata to all investors, including Liberty Interactive,

In connection with the Time Wamer Cable Merger, Liberty Broadband has also entered into an agreement with Charter
pursuant to which it has agreed to vote all of 1ts shares of Charter’s Class A common stock in favor of the Time Wamer Cable
Merger, the issuance of the Charter Shares and any related proposals. Liberty Broadband and Liberty Interactive have also entered
into an agreement with Charter which provides thai Liberty Broadband and Libeny Interactive will exchange, in a tax-free
transaction, the shares of Time Wamner Cable common stock held by each company for shares of New Charter Class A common
stock (subject to certan limitations). In addinon, Liberty Inferactive has also agreed to grant Liberty Broadband a proxy over the
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shares of New Charter it receives in the exchange, along with a right of first refusal with respect to the underlving New Charter
shares.

Liberty Broadband intends to fund its commitment to purchase up to 700 million in shares of New Charter at a per
share price of $173.00 (as adjusted) in comection with the Bright House acquisition through cash on hand or other financing. As
previously announced, AN and Liberty Broadband will enter info a proxy agreement, pursuant o which AN wall grant Liberty
Broadband a five-vear proxy to vote shares of New Charter held by AN, capped at 7% of New Charter’s outstanding shares.
Libeny Broadband is expected to control approximately 25.01% of the aggregate voting power of New Charter following the
completion of the Tune Wamer Cable Merger and the Bright House Transaction and is expected to be New Charter’s largest
stockholder,

The terms of the Second Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement (which will become effective in its entirety
upon the closing of the Bright House Transaction) remain substantially similar to the Bright House Stockholders Agreement,
except that the restrictions on Liberty Broadband's ability to utilize its shares of New Charier in connection with financing
transactions have been eliminated and AN will be entitled to designate two {instead of three) director nominees, among other
things.

The Time Wamner Cable Merger was approved by stockholders of both Charter and Time Wamer Cable during September
2015 and is subject to regulatory approval and other customary conditions to closing. The Bright House Transaction is subject to
several conditions, including the completion of the Time Warner Cable Merger (subject to cerigin exceptions if Time Wamer
Cable enters into another sale transaction) and regulatory approval. Therefore, as these transactions are subject to centain
contingencies, we have nod reflecied any financial impacts in the consolidated financial staiemenis related to the respective
agreements as of December 31, 2015,

(T} Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of TruePosifion goodwill is as follows (amounis in thousands):

Balance at Jamuary 1,2003 ... ... ... ... LY M il
Balance al December 31,2003 ... L. 20669
Acquisilions {1).....cocuiiiiiiiiiiii it it i i i 24931
Impaimments (2) . ... cv i (18.434)
Balance al December 31,2004 ... il 27,166
Inpairmeents {3) . .. ooc it i ii it s it i s r s (20,669)
Balance st December 31,2005 .. ... ..o iiniiiinees S 6,497

(1) As discussed in note 2, TruePosition acquired Skyhook on February 14, 2014,

(2) As discussed in note 2, as a result to the loss of one of Skyhook's significant customers in November 2014, the
Company deternuned the fair value of Skyhook and performed a Step 2 impaimment test, The fair value of Skyhook,
including the related imtangibles and goodwill, was determined using Skyhook's projections of future operating
performance and applying a combination of markei multiples (market approach) and discounted cash flow (income
approach) calculations (Level 3).

(30 As discossed in note 2, as a result (o the loss of one of TruePosition's significant costomers in December 2015, the
Company determined the fair value of TruePosition and performed a Siep 2 impairment test. The fair value of
TruePosition, including the related intangibles and goodwill, was determined vsing TruePosition's projections of
future operating performance and applying a combmation of market multiples (market approach) and discounted

cash flow (income approach) caleulations {Level 3).
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During 2015, the Company recorded an impairment of all of the Company’s goodwill related to TruePosition, and as of
December 31, 2015, the remaiming goodwill relates (o Skyvhook. As of December 31, 2015, the Company's accumulated goodwill
impairment loss was 5391 million. The Company does not have any significant indefinite lived intangible assets other than
goodwill,

Intangible assets subject to amortization are comprised of the following (amounis in thousands):

L] her 31, 2015 1] ber 31, 2014
Giross Carrving Accumulated Met Carrying Giross Carrying Acenmulated Met Carrying
Amsount Amartization Amsonnt Amount Amartization Amount
Acquired patents . ... ...... 5 10,823 (6,872) 3,951 B E22 (5,801) 3,021
Tradename. .. ............ 2,838 (1,154) 1,684 2,788 (788) 2,004}
Capitalized software. . .. ... 10,973 (10,857) 116 10,991 (10,597) 394
Cusiomer relationships. . . . . 10,212 (4,076) 6,136 10212 (2,712) 7,500
8 34,846 (22.959) 11,887 32.813 (19.898) 12,915

Effective January 1, 20015, TrucPosition's patents are amortized straight-line over three to three and a half vears,
TruePosition's capitahized software miangible asseis are amortized straight-line over three o five years. TruePosition’s cusiomer
relationships and tradename are amortized straight-line over five and a half yvears. Amortization expense was 83,1 million, $6.5
million and $1.4 million for cach of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The estimated future amortization expense for the next five vears related to intangible assets with definite lives as of
December 31, 2015 is as follows (amounis in thousands):

(8) Debt

Omn October 30, 2014, in connection with and prior to the effectiveness of the Broadband Spin-Off, a wholly-owned
special purpose subsidiary of the Company ("BroadbandSPV™) entered mto two margin loan agreements (the "Margin Loan
Agreemenis”) with each of the lenders party thereto. The Margin Loan Agreements permit BroadbandSPV, subject to ceriain
funding conditions, to borrow term loans up (o an aggregate principal amount equal to 5400 million (the "Margin Loans™), of
which BroadbandSPY borrowed $320 million on October 31, 2014 and had 580 million available o be drawn immediately
following the Broadband Spin-Off. Dunng November 2014, subsequent to the Broadband Spin-O4f, Liberty Broadband bormowed
an additional $52 million to fund the exercise of the Charter warrants, As of December 31, 2014, Liberty Broadband had $372
million cutstanding under the Margin Loan Agreements, with an additional $28 million available to be drawn, $300 million of
the amount borrowed pursuant to the Margin Loan Agreements (less certain expenses incurred in connection with the Margin
Loans) was disiributed to Liberty prior o the Broadband Spin-Off. During October 2015, Libeny Broadband borrowed an
additional $28 million pursuant to the Margin Loan Agreements. The maximum borrowing capacity of $400 million under the
Margin Loan Agreements was oulstanding at December 31, 2015, The maturity date of the Margin Loans is October 30, 2017,
Borrowings under the Margin Loan Agreements bear interest at the three-month LTIBOR rate plus 1.55%. Interest is payable
quarterly in arrears beginning on December 31, 2004, The Margin Loan Agreements contain various affimative and negative
covenants that restrict the activities of BroadbandSFV, The Margin Loan Agreements do not include any financial covenants,
The Margin Loan Agreements also contain certain restrictions related to additional indebtedness,
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BroadbandSPV's obligations under the Margin Loan Agreements are guaranteed by the Company. In addition,
BroadbandSPV's obligations are secured by first priority liens on a portion of the Company’s ownership interest in Charter,
sufficient for BroadbandSPV to meet its loan to value requirement under the Margin Loan Agreements. Each agreement contains
language that indicates that Liberty Broadband, as borrower and transferor of underlying shares as collateral, has the right to
exereise all voling, consensual and other powers of ownership peraining to the transferred shares for all purposes, provided that
Libenty Broadband agrees that it will not vote the shares in any manner that would reasonably be expected to give rise to transfer
or other cerfain resirictions. Similarly, the loan agreemenis indicate that no lender party shall have any voling righis with respect
to the shares transferred, except 1o the extent that a lender party buys any shares in a sale or other disposition made pursuant to
the terms of the loan agreements. As of December 31, 2015, 7.0 million shares of Charter with a value of $1.3 hillion were
pledged as collateral pursuant to the Margin Loans.

In connection with the collar agreement on shares of Time Warner Cable entered into on March 27, 20135, as discussed
in note 4, the Company also entered nto a $234 million revolving loan agreement, On April 7, 2015, Liberty Broadband drew
840 million on this loan, which was the amount used to match the outstanding call liability due in April 2015, The shares of Time
Warner Cable underlying the collar served as collateral for borrowings under the revolving loan agreement. Borrowings
outstanding under the revolving loan agreement bore interest at the three-month LTBOR. rate plus 0.64%, payable quanerly in
arrears beginning on March 31, 2015, The interest rate on the unused portion of the revolving loan agreement was 0.12% per
annum, The Company repaid the $40 million drawn on the Joan dunng July 2015 and the agreement was terminated upon
unwinding of the Time Warmner Cable collar agreement.

TruePosition had a $4 million line of credit, which expired on December 25, 2003, covening standby letlers of credil
issued for the benefit of TruePosition. Pursuant to the terms of the ling of credit, upon its expiration, any issued and outstanding
letters of credit remain i effect through the remainder of their respective terms, the last of which expired during the first quarter
of 2005, Accordingly, there were no letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 20035, $634 thousand in letters of credit were
outstanding as of December 31, 2004, Letters of credit issued under the line of credit prior to its expiration remained collateralized
by a cash deposit maintained by the bank (note 3), which was cancelled upon the expiration of the last letter of credit during the
first quarter of 2015,

The line of credit bore inferest at the rate of four-fenths of 1% per annmum on the balance available for 1ssuance of letiers
of credit. Letters of credit issued under the line of credit bore interestat 1.75%. All interest was payable quarterly. Interest expense
related to the line of credit was not significant for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, or 2013,

In April 2013, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on the presentation of debt issuance costs, which requires debt
issuance costs related to a recognized debd liability to be presented on the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the deb
liability. The new guidance intends to simplify the presentation of debi issuance cosis. In August 2015, the FASB issued new
accounting guidance on the presentation or subsequent measurement of debt issuance costs related 1o line of credit arrangements,
which provides that such cost may be presented as an asset and amortized ratably over the term of the line of credit arrangement,
regardless of whether there are outstanding borrowings on the amrangement, The amendments in these new accounting standards
are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal vears beginning after December 13, 2015 and interim periods within those
vears. Early adoption is permitied for financial statemenis that have not been previously issued and retrospective application is
required for each balance sheet presented. We retrospectively early adopted this new guidance in the fourth quarter of 2015,
Prior period amounts have been appropriately restated to reflect this change in presentation of deferred loan costs on the
consolidated balance sheets, The adoption of the new guidance resulted in the reclassification of $461 thousand net debt issuance
costs previously reported as other assets to be reclassified to debt as of December 31, 2014,
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{9} Income Taxes

Liberty Broadband, as consolidated, was mcluded in the federal consolidated income tax retum of Liberty through
MNovember 4, 2014, Subsequent 1o the Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty Broadband files separate federal consolidated income tax
retums. The tax provision included in these financial statements has been prepared on a stand-alone basis, as if Liberty Broadband
was not part of the consolidated Liberty group for the periods prior to the Broadband Spin-Off. Charter and Time Wamer Cable
are not included in the Liberty Broadband consolidated group tax return as Liberty Broadband owns less than 0% of both
companies. A portion of the income taxes allocated to Liberty Broadband by Liberty were treated as an equity confribution by

Liberty upon completion of the Broadband Spin-Off.

Income tax benefit {expense) consisis of:

Current:

Stateandlocal . ... ..o e
Deeferred:

- B S e e N R b s ea GG DE A O Soe R DO GRE 0 S Do Co G
Stateandlocal . ...

Income tax benefil (eXpense). .....oviviiiianiiinans

Income tax benefit (expense) differs from the amounts computed by applying the U.S, federal income tax rate of 35%

as & resull of the following:

Computed expecied tax benefit (expensed. ... ...,
State and local taxes, net of federal income taxes. ... ..., ..
Foreign taxes, net of foreign tax credit
Change in valuation allowance
Dividends received deduction. . . ......cov i i
Chamge X FE _. ..o i e e e e ni e aeaen
Impairment of intangible assets not deductible for tax purposes .
Loss on liguidation of subsidiary
Other R .

Income tax {expense) benefit. .. ... ... So 0008 0008 000000

For the yvear ended December 31, 2013, the significant reconciling items, as noted in the table above, are the result of

the impairment 1o non-deductible goodwill related to TruePosition.

For the vear ended December 21, 2014 the significant reconciling items, as noted in the fable above, are the result of the
impairment o non-deductible goodwill at Skyhook and a tax loss from the liguidation of a consolidated subsidiary at

TruePosition.
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Years endbed December 31,
s 2014 E1E]
amomnts in thonsands
(4,234 510 (5,124)
(862) 473 (3,102)
(5,006) 983 (£,226)
23,512 62,014 26,735
1,452 4.689 4,184
24,964 66,703 30,924
19,868 67,686 22,698

Years endesd December 31,
Rl 2014 2013
amounts in thowsamls
5 24,519 70,802 22,549
1,786 2657 2,462
(59) - (751)
612 (2,154 (986)
752 819 1,506
(1749) {998) {1,756)
(7.234)  (6452)
: 3,082 :
(329) (70 (326)
5 19,868 67 686 22,698
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During 2013, Libeny Broadband changed its estimate of the effective tax rate used to measure its net deferred tax

linbilities, based on expected changes to the Company’s staie apporiionment faciors due to the Company s invesiment in Charter
Communications. The rate change required an adjustment to deferred taxes at the parent level.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise o significant portions of the deferred income tax assets and
deferred meome tax liabilities are presented below:

December 31
W 014
amounts in thonsands
Dieferred tax assets:
Met operating loss carryforwands , ., .. . % 12,585 20,201
INVeStMeNIS . ..o vve v inananinananas o 45,195 —
Accrued stock-based compensaiion 2,896 043
Deferred revenue. .. ... ... _. 1,880 16,490
Other ..o 2,254 6,759
Total deferred tax assets. . . . - 64,810 44,393
Less: valuation allowanee ... ........ (7.628) (8.240)

Net deferred fax assels. . ... ... ...
Dieferred tax Liabilities:

57,182 36,153

INVESIIMEIIS L o oo ee e e e — (1,252)
Intangible assets .. ......... S Snonoooa {1,795) (4,039)
EHBEE .. oeee e v s e e Sbotnoocs (1% (40

Total deferred tax liabilities .
Net deferred fax asset (liability)

The Company's valuation allowance decreased $612 thousand in 2015, which affected tax expense during the year ended
December 31, 2015,

At December 31, 2015, Liberty Broadband had federal and state net operating losses (on a tax effected basis) and tax
credit carryforwards for income tax purposes aggregating approximately $12.6 million, These net operating losses and credit
carryforwards are expected to be whlized prior o expiration, except for $7.6 million which based on current projections, may
expire unused. The carryforwards that are expected to be utilized will begin to expire in 2022,

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had not recorded tax reserves related to unrecogmzed tax benefits for unceriain
tax positions.

As of December 31, 2015, Liberty’s fax years prior to 2012 are cloged for federal income tax purposes, and the IRS has
completed 115 examination of Liberty’s 2012 through 2014 tax years. The tax loss canryforwards from the 2001 through 2014 tax
years are still subject 1o adjustment, Liberty Broadband’s 2015 tax year is being examined as part of the IRS's Compliance
Assurance Process “CAF” program. As discussed earlier, because Liberty Broadband’s ownership of Charter Communications
and Time Warner Cable is less than the required 80%, these companies are not consolidated with Libeny Broadband for federal
INCOME (31X PUIPoses,

{10} Stockholders' Equity

In the Broadband Spin-Off, record holders of Liberty Series A, Series B and Series C common stock received one-fourth
of a share of the corresponding series of Liberty Broadband commaon stock for each share of Liberty common stock held by them
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as of 5:00 p.m., New York City Time, on October 29, 2014 {the record date) for the Broadband Spin-OfF, with cash paid in lieu
of fractional shares. This resulied in the issuance of an aggregate 85,761,332 shares of Series A, Series B and Series C common
stock.

In addition, following the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, on December 10, 2014, stockholders received a
subscription right to acquire one share of Senes C Liberty Broadband common stock for every five shares of Liberty Broadband
common stock they held as of the rights record date at a per share subscription price of $40.36, which was a 20% discount 1o the
20-trading day volume weighted average trading price of the Series C Liberty Broadband common stock following the completion
of the Broadband Spin-OfF. The rights offering was fully subseribed on January 9, 2005, with 17,277,224 shares of Series C
common stock issued to those rightsholders exercising basic and, as applicable, oversubscription privileges. The subscription
rights were issued to raise capital for general corporate purposes of Liberty Broadband

Preferred Stock

Liberty Broadband’s preferred stock is issuable, from time to time, with such designations, preferences and relative
participating, optional or other rights, qualifications, limitations of restrictions thereof, as shall be stated and expressed in a
resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of such preferred stock adopied by Liberty Broadband's board of directors. As

of December 31, 2015, no shares of preferred stock were issued.
Common Stock

Liberty Broadband's Series A common stock has one vote per share, Liberty Broadband's Series B common stock has ten
voles per share and Libenty Broadband's Series C common stock has no votes per share. Each share of the Series B common
stock 1s exchangeable at the option of the holder for one share of Series A common stock. All series of our common siock
participate on an equal basis with respect to dividends and distributions,

As of December 31, 2015, there were 630 thousand shares of Senes A and 2.8 million shares of Series C common stock
reserved for issuance under exercise privileges of oulstanding stock options,

(11) Stock-Based Compensation
Liberty Broadband - Incemiive Plans

In connection with the Broadband Spin-Off, the holder of an outstanding option or stock appreciation right (collectively,
“Award”) to purchase shares of Liberty common stock on the record date (an original Liberty Award) received an Award o
purchase shares of the corresponding series of our Liberty Broadband commeon stock and an adjustment to the exercise price amd
number of shares subject o the onginal Liberty Award (as so adjusted, an adjusied Liberty Award). Following the Broadband
Spin-CHE, employees of Liberty hold Awards in both Liberty common stock and Liberty Broadband common stock. The
compensation expense relating to emplovees of Liberty is recorded at Liberty, Therefore, compensation expense related to options
resulting from the Broadband Spin-Off will not be recognized m the Company’s consolidated financial statements,

Except as described above, all other terms of an adjusted Liberty Award and a new Libenty Broadband Award (including,
for example, the vesting terms thereof) are in all material respects, the same as those of the corresponding original Liberty Award,

Pursuant to the Liberty Broadband 2014 Crmnibus Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan™), as amended, the Company may

grant Awards to be made in respect of a maximum of 8.4 million shares of Liberty Broadband common stock. Awards generally
vest over 4-5 years and have a term of 7-10 years, Liberty Broadband issues new shares upon exercise of equity awards,
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Liberty Broadband — Grants of Stock Options

During the year ended December 31, 2015, Liberty Broadband granfed 21 thousand options (o purchase shares of Series
C common stock to its non-employvee directors: (1) 18 thousand options with a weighted average grant-date fair value of $13.28
per share which cliff vest over a one vear vesting period and (2) 3 thousand options with a weighted average grant date fair value
of $15.03 per share which cliff vest over a two year vesting period. There were no oplions to purchase shares of Series A common
stock pranted during the period.

The Company has calculaied the grant-date fair value for all of s equity classified awards and any subsequent
remeasurement of its lability classified awards wsing the Black-Scholes Model. The Company estimates the expected term of
the Awards based on historical exercise and forfeiture data. For grants made in 2014 and 2013, the range of expected terms was
4.6 10 7.3 years. Snce Liberty Broadband common stock has not traded on the stock market for a significant length of time, the
volatility used in the calculation for Awards is based on the historical volatlity of Charter Communications common stock and
the implied volatility of publicly traded Charter Communications options; as the most significant asset within Liberty Broadband,
the volatility of Charter Communications served as a proxy for the expected volatility of Liberty Broadband. For grants made in
2014 and 2015, the range of volatilities was 27.4% to 28.5%, The Company uses a zero dividend rate and the risk-free rate for
Treasury Bonds with a term similar to that of the subject option.

Liberty Broadband — Outstanding Awards

The following table presents the number and weighted average exercise price (“WAEP™) of Awards fo purchase Liberty
Broadband common stock granted 1o cenain officers, employees and directors of the Company, as well as the weighted average
remaining life and aggregate mirinsic value of the Awards.

Weighted
average
remaining Aggregate
contractual imirinsic
Series A WAEP life value
{im thomsands) {in vears) iir millio s}
Outstanding at January 1,2015.......... 807§ iz
Granted . . ... e Ty Spers $
1 (176) % 31.67
13 % 37.11
Outstanding at December 31, 2005, ... ... .. 630 8 3236 32 8 2
Exercisable at December 31,2005 ... ... .. e 8 3220 i1 s 12
Weighted
average
remmining Aggregate
contracimal intrinsic
Series O WAERP L value
{in thousamls) {im years} {im millians)
Outstanding at January 1, 2005 . . ... 3,137 % 39.85
Crranted 21 8 51.24
Exercised (395) % 3150
Forfeited Cancelled ) 8 37.09
Ouistanding ai December 31, 2015, ...... 2761 % 41.09 64 8 30
Exercisable at December 31, 2005 .. ..... 1,184 S 32.17 i1 5 23

The Company had no oulstanding Series B opiions during 2015,
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As of December 31, 2015, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested Liberty Broadband Awards was
approximately $20.0 million. Such amount will be recognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations over o
weighted average period of approximately 2.5 years,

As of December 31, 2015, Liberty Broadband reserved 3.4 million shares of Series A and Series C common stock for
issuance under exercise privileges of oulstanding stock Awards.

Liberty Broadband — Exercises

The aggregate intrinsic value of all options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $11.2
million and §1.8 million, respectively.

Libery Broadband — Restricied Shares

The aggregate fair value of all Series A and Senies C resiricted shares of Liberty Broadband common stock that vested
during the vears ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was §5.8 million and $172 thousand, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had approximately 38,000 unvested restricied shares of Series A and Series C
Liberty Broadband common stock held by certain directors, officers and employvees of the Company with a weighted average
grant-date fair value of $18.57 per share,

TruePosifion equity incentive plans
Lang-Term Incentive Plans

TruePosition and Skyhook have granted PARs and PSUs to emplovees, directors, and consultants of TruePosition and
Skyvhook, respectively, pursuant to the LTIPs, PAR grants under the LTIPs vest over a four or five-year period. On June 30 of
each of the fiscal years following the second, fourth, sixih, and eighth anniversaries of the daie of a grant, 25% of the original
grant 15 deemed to have been exercised and canceled. Upon such date, the holders of such grants receive the appreciation in the
value of the grant, if any, from the value of the grant on the date of its ssuance, PSUs, unless otherwise indicated, have the same
vesling, exercise, and cancellation provisions as PARs granted under the plan. Cerain of the FARs and the majority of the
oulstanding PSU grants contain modifications to the standard vesting, exercise and cancellation provisions.

Upon separation from TroePosition, holders of granis are eligible, assuming all conditions are met under the LTIPs, w
receive the appreciation in value of their vested PAR grants and the value of their vested PSU grants as of the date of their
separation that have not been deemed exercised and canceled,
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The following summarizes the PAR and PSU activities under the LTIPs during 2015 {in thousands):

Stand-alone Tandens Stand-alone Skyhonk
PARs FARs PSS Pl PARs

Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ........... 1.076 51 15 161 3988
Giranis 120 — — 3 4,028
Exercises (297) (51) (1% (24) {150)
Forfeitures. .. ......oooviiiiiiian [&3] — — — (B05)
Cutstanding at December 31, 2015, ... .. .. H04 — — 160 7061
Fair value of outstanding grants. ... ....... ] 2028 0§ 1660
Vested fatrvalue . ... - - — 5 1150 § 592
Weighted average remaining vesting period . 2.3 years 2.1 years 2.5 years

Granis that are exercised and paid and grants that are forfeited, canceled, or otherwise not paid are available for grant
under the LTIPs,

Grants under the LTIPs may be settled in cash, publicly traded stock of the companies or an affiliate of the companies,
or a combination thereof, TruePosifion accounts for grants under the LTIPs as hability instrumenis, Accordingly, TroePosition
measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for grants based on the current fair value of the grants and records
a linbility at the end of each reporing period equivalent to the vested portion of such curreni fiir value.

TruePosition calculates the grant-date fair value and subsequent remeasurement of its liability classified awards using
the Black-Scholes model. TruePosition estimates the expected term of the awards based on historical exercise and forfeiture data,
The expected term for grants made to dunng 2015 ranged from 0.5 - 7.5 years. The volanlity used by TroePosition in the Black-
Scholes model for grants made during 2015 was 40%. TreePosition uses a zero dividend rate and the risk-free rate for Treasury
Bonds with a term similar to that of the subject options, which ranged from 0.5%; - 2.1% for grants made in 2015,

As of December 31, 20015 and 2014, £2.0 million and 52.1 million, respectively, are included in other liahilities for the
fair value {Level 2) of the Company's LTIP obligations.

Stack Option Plan

In October 1995, TruePosition adopted the SIP, which provides for the granting of stock options to employees, directors,
and consultants of TruePosition. Options granted under the SIP may be either Incentive Stock Options (1S0s) or Nonqualified
Stock Options (NS0s). [80s may be granted only to TruePosition emplovees (incleding officers and directors who are also
employees). NSOs may be granted to employees, directors, and consultants, Options under the SIP may be granted for periods
of up 1o ten years and generally vest over four or five yvears. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no oplions
outstanding.

{12) Employee Benefit Plans

Prior to January 1, 20015, TruePosition participated in Liberty’s defined-contribution plan (the “Liberty 401¢k) Plan™).
The Liberty 401{k) Plan provided for employees o make contributions by salary reductions to a trust for investment in Liberty
common stock, as well as several mutual funds and/'or a seli-directed brokerage account pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code,

Beginning January 1, 2015, employees of TrueFosition and Skyhook participate in a separate defined-contribution plan
administered by TroePosition (the *TruePosition 401(k) Plan”). The TruePosition 401(k) Plan provides for employees o make
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contributions by salary reductions for investment in several mutual funds and/or a self-directed brokerage account pursuant to
Section 401(k) of the Intemal Revenue Code.

TruePosition and Skyhook employees are eligible for 100% and 50% matching contributions by the Company for each
dollar contributed up to 10% and &% of the employees” total compensation, respectively, subject to certain limitations. For the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2004 and 2013, TreePosition connbuted approximately $1.1 million, $1.5 million and
£1.6 million respectively.

(13) Related Party Transactions

During the vear ended Decemnber 31, 2014 certain of TruePosition's costs and expenses were charged to TruePosition
by Liberty. The amounis due fo (from) Liberty and the activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 are summanzed as follows
{amounts in thousands):

2014
Payable (receivable) at beginning of year .. .........oovvinnn 5 (5953)
Costs and expenses charged by Liberty. ... ...l 3913
Amounts (receivable) due under the tax-sharing arrangement. . . . {4,004)
Transfer of relaied party receivable to (from) note receivable. . .. 5,306
Payments to Liberty. ... . o o oL {6,390
Amount receivable (due) under the tax-sharing armangement
tramsferred to Liberty Broadband ... ........................ 7,227
{Receivable) payable atendofyear. . ........cooiieii i en, 5

Prior to the completion of the Broadband Spin-OiT, TruePosition was a parly o cerfain tax sharing arrangements with
Likerty (or its former affiliate). Under these tax-sharing arrangements, TroePosition had been obligated to make cash payments
to Liberty (or its former affiliate) m each year TruePosition generated positive taxable mcome, determimed as if TruePosition
filed a separate tax return. The amount of such payment has been equal to the amount of TruePosition's taxable income (a5 50
determined) multiplied by the highest corporate tax rate in effect for the applicable tax jurisdiction, If on a separate return basis,
TruePosition would have a net operating loss or net tax credit for a particular vear, and such loss or credit could be wiilized on
the actual tax returns filed by Liberty (or its former affiliate), then TruePosition would be entitled to reduce current and future
payments to Liberty (or its former affiliate) by the amount of such tax benefit. TruePosition made payments of $3.2 million
2014 and 136 million in 2013 under these tax sharing arangements. Prior to the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off,
TruePosition’s income tax receivable from Liberty was transferred 1o Liberty Broadband and the tax sharing amangement between
Liberty and TruePosition was extinguished.
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(14) Commitments and Contingencies
Leases
TruePosition leases vanous properties under operating leases expiring al vanous times through 2008, The aggregate

minimum annual lease payments under the noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2015 are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

s 161
‘7
§ 2am

TruePositions principal facility is under lease through December 2017 and Skyhook's lease for its corporate
headguarters expires in January 2018, Total renial expense for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $3.7
million, $3.3 million and $3_1 million, respectively.

Litigation

On May 23, 2012, TruePosition filed a patent infringement lawsuit i the U.S, Distriet Court for the District of Delaware
against Polaris Wireless, Inc. (“Polaris”), related to the sale by Polaris of systems used to locate mobile devices. In parallel with
the lawsuit, ai Polans’s request, the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office initinfed an Inter Paries Review. Both the District Counl
and the Patent Trial and Appeal Board ruled adversely to TruePosition and those rulings were appealed by TroePosition. On
December 15, 2015, the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Court confirmed the decision of the Patent Trial and
Appeals Board and dismissed the appeal of the District Court’s ruling as moot, Mo further appeal will be taken by TroePosition,
During the pendency of the appeal, Polaris filed a motion in the District Court for an award of approximately $3 million n
attomeys’ fees and expenses mcurred in defending the lawsuit, The matter was heard by the Court on October 16, 2015, wherein
the court denied the Polaris motion.

On September 10, 2010, Skyhook filed a patent infringement lawsuil in the U5, Disirict Court for the Disirict of
Massachusetts agamst Google, Ine. (“Google™). In March 2013, Skyvhook amended its lawsuit to add additional claims. In total,
at the time the case was to be tried, Skyvhook alleged that Google mfringed on eight Skyvhook patents involving location
technology and sought an injunction and/or award of damages in an amount to be determined at trial. The case had been scheduled
to be tried before a jury commencing March %, 2015, However, on March 5, 2015, the panties advised the District Count that the
case has been setiled and thereby dismissed the action without costs and without prejudice fo the nght person, upon good cause
shown within 45 days, to reopen the action if settlement is not consummated. On March 27, 2015, the parties consummated a
final settlement agreement and on Apnl 24, 2015, Google paid Skyhook setlement consideration of $90 million. In retum for
payment of the setilement consideration, Google received dismissal of the action with prejudice, a license to the existing Skyhook
patents and patent applications (and their continuations, divisionals, continsations-in-part), a three-vear covenamt not o sue
(subject to limited exceptions) and a mutual release of claims. The seiflement amount of S90 million is recorded net of
approximately $29 5 million for legal fees in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015,

General Litigation

In the ordinary course of busingss, the Company and s consolidated subsidiaries are parties to legal proceedings and
claims involving alleged infringement of third-party intellectual property rights, defamation, and other claims, Although it is
reasonably possible that the Company may incur losses upon conclusion of such matiers, an estimate of any loss or range of loss
cannot be made. In the opinion of management, it is expected that amounts, if any, which may be required to satisfy such
contingencies will nod be matenal in relation to the accompanying consolidated financial statemenis.
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Tndemuification Claims

In the normal course of business, TruePosition provides indemnification to ceriain customers against specified claims
that might anse against those customers from the use of TruePosition's products. To date, TruePosition has not made any
significant reimbursements to any of its customers for any losses related to these indemnification provisions, However, five such
claims are currently pending and are described below, TruePosition iz unable to estimate the maximum potential impact of these
indemnification provisions on its future results of operations, although TruePosition's liabilities in centain of those arrangements
are customarily limited in various respects, including monetarily. Accordingly, no accrual was recorded related (o indemnification
claims as of December 31, 20105 or 2014,

TruePosition’s former customer, T-Mobile, has made two indemnification claims agmnst TruePosition. In Sepiember,
2008, T-Mobile requested that TruePosition indemnify it for damages (ncluding defense costs) that it may incur in a patent
infringement action that Emsat Advanced Geolocation, LLC (“*Emsat™) filed against T-Mobile. TruePosition is not a party to the
suit. TruePosition has denied that it 15 obligated to mdemnify T-Mobile and believes that the equipment that it has supplied to T-
Mobile is not covered by the patent claims that Emsat is asserting against T-Mobile. T-Mobile has not vet formally pursued its
indemnification claims in a civil court action, but has indicated iis intention to do so afier the infringement action is resolved. In
March 2014, T-Mobile requested that TruePosition indemnify it for damages (including defense costs) that it may imcur in a patent
infringement action that Guidance TP LLC ("Guidanee™) filed against T-Mobile. TruePosition is not a party fo the suit,
TruePosition has indicated a willingness to participate in the defense of the action, but has not yet recerved a response from T-
Mobile,

TruePosition's customer, AT&T, has made four indemnification claims against TreePosition. [n Oclober 2008, AT&T
requested TruePosition o indemnify it for damages (including defense costs) that it may incur relating to the Emsat litigation
described in the preceding paragraph (lo which AT&T is a party). In June 2000, AT&T requested TraePosition to mdemnify it for
damages (including defense costs) that it may incur relating to a lawsuit filed against AT&T by Tendler Cellular of Texas, LLC
{“Tendler”) (to which the Company is not a party). This action relates to TroePosition's subsidiary, Useful Networks, Inc., whose
operations were discontinued in 2010, In June 2011, AT&T requested TruePosition to indemnify it for damages (including defense
costs) that it may incur relating to a lawsuit filed against AT&T by Tracbeam, LLC (o which Company is not a party).
TruePosition has denied that it is obligated to indemnify AT&T with respect to the Emsat and Tendler cases. AT&T has not yel
formally pursued its indemnification claims in a civil court action and it is unclear at this time whether or not it will do so. The
lawsuit filed agamst AT&ET by Guidance [P LLC, was resolved by the payment to AT&T of $55 thousand during October 2015,
With respect to Tracheam, AT&T has determined that TruePosition's total allocated contribution 15 $132 thousand and has
invoiced TruePosition accordingly. TruePosition has informed AT&T that TruePosition believes that the allocation method
emploved by AT&T is flawed and thai the actual amount owed is less than $132 thousand. TruePosifion is unable fo estimaie the
maximum potential impact of these indemnification provisions on its future results of operations, although TruePosition™s
libilities i certain of those arangements are customarily limited in vanous respects, including monetarnly.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Liberty Broadband did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current
or fufure effect on the Company’s financial condition, resulis of operations, liquidity, capital expendiiures or capital resources.

(15) Segment Information

Liberty Broadband identifies its reportable segments as (A) those consolidated companies that represent 109 or more
of its consolidated annual revenue, annual Adjusted OIBDA or total assets and (B) those equity method affiliates whose share of

eamings or losses represent 10%% or more of Libery Broadband s annual pre-tax eamings (losses).
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Liberty Broadband evaluates performance and makes decisions about allocating resources 1o ils operating segments
based on financial measures such as revenue, Adjusted OIBDA. In addition, Libeny Broadband reviews nonfinancial measures
such as subscriber growth.

Liberty Broadband defines Adjusted OIBDA as revenue less cost of sales, operating expenses, and selling, general and
administrative expenses (excluding stock-based compensation). Liberty Broadband believes this measure is an imporiant
indicator of the operational strength and performance of its businesses, including each business’s ability to service debt and fund
capital expendifures. In addition, this measure allows management fo view operating resulis and perform analytical comparisons
and benchmarking between businesses and identify strategies to improve performance. This measure of performance excludes
depreciation and amortization, stock based compensation, separately reported litigation settlements and restructuring and
impairment charges that are ncluded in the measurement of operating income pursuant to GAAP, Accordingly, Adjusted OIBDA
should be considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for, operating income, net eamings, cash flow provided by operating
activities and other measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAP. Liberty Broadband generally accounts
for intersegment sales and wransfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, that is, al current prices.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, Liberty Broadband has identified the following consolidated company and
equity method investment as its reportable segments:

+  TruePosition—a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that develops and markets technology for locating
wireless phones and other wireless devices on a cellular network, enabling wireless camiers and govermment
agencies o provide public safety E-9-1-1 services domestically and services in support of national security and law
enforcement worldwide. In addition, TreePosition acquired Skvhook in 2014, which operates a global location
network providing hybrid wireless positioning technology and contexiual location intelligence solutions worldwide,

+  Charter—an equity method investment that is one of the largest providers of cable services in the United States,
offering a variety of entertainment, information and communications solutions to residential and commercial
CUSLOMErs,

Liberty Broadband's operating segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each segment requires different technologies, distribution channels and marketing strategies, The
accounting policies of the segments that are also consolidated companics are the same as those described in the Company’s
summary of significant accounting policies in the Company’s annval financial statements. For periods in which Liberty
Broadband owned Charter shares and warrants, we have included amounts attributable to Charter in the tables below. Although
Libery Broadband owns less than 10096 of the outstanding shares of Charter, 100% of the Charter amounits are included in the
schedule below and subsequently eliminated i order to reconcile the account totals to the Liberty Broadband consolidated
financial statements,
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Performance Measures

Wears ended Decembor 31,
ms 14 03
Adjusted Adjusted Addjusted
Revenme OIEDA Revenue OIADA Revenue DIRDA
amounis in thonsands
TreePosition . .. . % 91,182 43,600 69,045 {2,152) 77,363 5,290
Charter (a). . ... e 9,754,000 3,317,000 9,108,000 3,128,000 B 155,000 2,811,000
Corporate and other ... - {11,.958) o {1,55%) = o=
9,845,182 3 348,642 9.177.045 3,124,289 §.232363 2,816,290
Eliminate equity method
affiliate. . ... ......... {9,754 (100 (3,317,000} {9, 108,000} {3,128 000) (8,155,000 (2,811,004
Consolidated Liberty
Broadband ........... § 91,182 31,642 6945 (3,711) 77,363 5,290

(a) The amounts herein represent Charter’s results for the full vears ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. However,
the poriion of Charier’s share of earnings (losses) included in the consolidated financial siatements of Liberty
Broadband only includes Chanter’s results from the time of acquisition (May 2013) through December 31, 2015,

Other Information

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Total Investmients Capital Tatal Investments Capital
asaels in alliliates expénsditures assils i alliliates expenditires
amounts in thomands
TreePosition, . ........... < 61,395 — 731 06,989 — 1,398
Charter ................. 39,316,000 — 1,840,000 24,388,000 — 2,221,000
Corporate and other, ...... 3,504 346 2,372,699 2,906,482 2,498 804
42,881,741 2,372,699 1,840,731 27,391,471 2498804 2,222,398
Elimmate equity method
affiiate, .............. {39 316,000) — {1,844 (HHY) {24,388 044 — {2,221 004))
Consolidated Liberty
Broadband . ........... 5§ 1,565,741 2,372,699 731 3,003,471 2498804 1,398

Revenue by Geographic Area

United States .. .....ooviiiiianinins Hooonoon

Oiher countries

Years ended December 31,

015 4 2013
amounis in thowsands
............. 587,739 66,045 68,179
3.443 3.000 9.184
91,182 69045 77,363
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Long-lived Assets by Geographic Area

Unnted States
Onher countries

Diecember 31,
2015 o4

amuunts in thousands

5 1,248 3,570
— 20
5 1,248 3,590

The following table provides a reconciliation of segment Adjusted OIBDA o carnings (loss) from continuing operations

hefore imcome taxes:

Years ended December 31,
1015 2014 1013
amounts in thousamls
Consolidated segment Adjusted OTBDA. ... § 31,642 (3,711) 5,200
Stock-based compensation .. ..., .. ... {6,380) (999) ()
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... {(6,088) (9.043) (4,382)
Gain on legal settlement . ............ 60,450 &,
Impairment of intangible assets . ... ... {20,669) {35,221)
Imterest expense ... ... ... {7.424) {1,138) —
Dividend and inferest income 3,797 5426 6,878
Share of earmings (loss) of affiliates, net (120.962) (127.373) (76,090)
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instruments, net. . ........... 2,619 51,189 97 8ol
Gam (loss) on dilution of mvestment maffiliate, .. .. ....................... (7. 198)  (87.158)  (92,933)
L 158 (63) (53)
Earnmngs (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes .............. $ (700550 (2022910 (64.426)
(16) Quarterly Financial Information (Unandited)
'Id 1-1 Jl" 4.
Qlﬂll!l' %"ﬂ' g.."ﬂl Qllﬂ!l'
amonnts in thousands
2015
Revenue. ..., m a1 A e a8 e mas et e e e e e m e £ 13316 12,645 15,225 49 996
Operating inconme (J088) . ... vveoiercneriie i iieniianiiieaneie. 5 30471 (3414) 288 11,610
Wet camings {loss) atiributable to Liberty Broadband Corporation Series A,
Series B and Series Cstockholders ... ... ... . il § 5318 (T809) (19295 (28.401)
Basic earnings (loss) aitnbutable o Liberty Broadband Corporation
Senes A, Series B and Series C stockholders per common share ... £ 005 (00K {0.19) {0,28)
Diluted eamings (loss) atinbutable to Liberty Broadband Cormporation
Senes A, Series B and Series C stockholders per common share ... £ 005 {0L0F) {0.19%) {0,28)
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2014:
BRI . L oo ettt e et e e e e e e e e 3 16921
Operating meome (J0SS) . ... .. i $ (4.538)
Met camings (loss) atiributable to Libenty Broadband Corporation Series A,

Series B and Series Cstockholders . ........coooviciiiiciiiiaen.. S(57,715)
Basic earnings {loss) attributable to Liberty Broadband Corporation Series A,

Series B and Series C stockholders per common share .. ... ..o L. 3 (0.65)
Diluted earmings (loss) attnbutable to Libenty Broadband Corporation

Series A, Serics B and Series C stockholders per common share ... ....... £ (D.65)

1-‘ Jld th
Chuarter Carier Cuarter
amounis in thousands

17.146 17445 17,583
(8,398) 6364 (36,404)

1904 (31,990)  (46,804)
0.02 0.36)  (0.53)

0.02 036 (053
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